UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

☑ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2022

□ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from ______ to _____

Commission file number: 001-41396

SOBR SAFE, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware	26-0731818
(State or other jurisdiction of	(I.R.S. Employer
incorporation or organization)	Identification No.)
6400 S. Fiddlers Green Circle, Suite 525	
Greenwood Village Colorado	80111

(Address of principal executive offices)

80111 (Zip Code

(Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code (844) 762-7723

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each class	Trading Symbol(s)	Name of each exchange on which registered
Common Stock	SOBR	The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (Nasdaq Capital
		Market)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes \boxtimes No \square

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files). Yes \boxtimes No \square

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," "smaller reporting company," and "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer	Accelerated filer	
Non-accelerated Filer	Smaller reporting company	X
	Emerging growth company	

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes 🗆 No 🗵

Applicable only to issuers involved in bankruptcy proceedings during the preceding five years:

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Sections 12, 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act of 1934 subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court. Yes \Box No \Box

Applicable only to corporate issuers:

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date. As of May 20, 2022, there were10,156,081 shares of common stock, \$0.00001 par value, issued and outstanding.

SOBR SAFE, INC.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I – I	FINANCIAL INFORMATION	3
ITEM 1	Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements	4
ITEM 2	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	29
ITEM 3	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	37
ITEM 4	Controls and Procedures	37
<u> PART II –</u>	OTHER INFORMATION	38
ITEM 1	Legal Proceedings	38
ITEM 1A	Risk Factors	38
ITEM 2	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	38
ITEM 3	Defaults Upon Senior Securities	38
ITEM 4	Mine Safety Disclosures	39
ITEM 5	Other Information	39
ITEM 6	Exhibits	40

PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Forward-Looking Statement Disclaimer

This Quarterly Report includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). These statements are based on management's beliefs and assumptions, and on information currently available to management. Forward-looking statements include the information concerning our possible or assumed future results of operations set forth under the heading "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations." Forward-looking statements also include statements in which words such as "expect," "anticipate," "intend," "plan," "believe," "estimate," "consider," or similar expressions are used.

Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance. They involve risks, uncertainties, and assumptions. Our future results and shareholder values may differ materially from those expressed in these forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to put undue reliance on any forward-looking statements.

Reverse Stock Split on April 28, 2022

At the open of market on April 28, 2022, our 1-for-3 reverse split of our common stock went effective with FINRA and our trading market. As a result, all common stock share amounts, as well as share amounts and exercise and conversion prices in derivative security instruments have been adjusted to reflect the reverse stock split.

ITEM 1 Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

The condensed consolidated balance sheets as of March 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, the condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2022, and 2021, the condensed consolidated statements of changes in stockholders' deficit for the three months ended March 31, 2022, and 2021, and the condensed consolidated statements of cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2022, and 2021, follow. The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments which are, in the opinion of management, necessary to a fair statement of the results for the interim periods presented. All such adjustments are of a normal and recurring nature.

SOBR SAFE, Inc. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

]	March 31,	D	ecember 31,
ASSETS	(2022 (Unaudited)		2021 (Audited)
Commente				
Current assets Cash	\$	107,448	\$	882,268
Accounts receivable	Ψ	500	Ψ	
Inventory		104,950		39,461
Prepaid expenses		29,286		12,553
Total current assets		242,184		934,282
SOBR Safe Intellectual Technology, net of accumulated amortization of \$706,684 and \$610,318 at March 31, 2022 and December				
31, 2021, respectively		3,147,991		3,244,357
Other assets		30,576		30,576
Total Assets	\$	3,420,751	\$	4,209,215
LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT				
Current liabilities				
Accounts payable	\$	367,036	\$	270,150
Accrued expenses		1,395,696		463,900
Accrued interest payable		309,809		252,110
Related party payables		95,320		82,883
Derivative liability		1,380,000		1,040,000
Convertible debenture payable				, ,
* Includes unamortized debt discount related to warrants, beneficial conversion feature and embedded conversion feature of none and \$1,291,882 at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively		3,048,781*		1,756,899
Current portion notes payable - related parties				
* Includes unamortized debt discount related to warrants and beneficial conversion features of \$259,658 and none at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively		302,152*		11,810
Current portion notes payable - non-related parties				
* Includes unamortized debt discount related to warrants and beneficial conversion features of \$258,175 and none at March 31,				
2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively		348,508*		104,183
Total current liabilities		7,247,302		3,981,935
Notes payable -related parties-less current portion * Includes unamortized debt discount related to warrants and beneficial conversion features of \$262,604 and \$645,547 at March				
31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively		187,396*		354,453
Notes payable -non-related parties-less current portion				
* Includes unamortized debt discount related to warrants and beneficial conversion features of \$261,396 and \$648,580 at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively		193,604*		356,420
Total Liabilities		7,628,302		4,692,808
Stockholders' Deficit Non Series Preferred stock, \$0.00001 par value; 16,300,000 and 19,300,000 shares authorized at March 31, 2022 and December				
31, 2021, respectively, no shares issued or outstanding at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 Series A Convertible Preferred stock, \$0.00001 par value; 3,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued or outstanding at March		-		
31, 2022 and December 31, 2021				
Series A-1 Convertible Preferred stock, \$0.00001 par value; 2,700,000 shares authorized, no shares issued or outstanding as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021		-		
Series B Convertible Preferred stock, \$0.000001 par value: 3,000,000 shares authorized, 3,000,000 shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 2022 and none at December 31, 2021, respectively		30		
Common stock, \$0.00001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 7,803,139 and 8,778,555 shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively		78		88
		78 58,887,152		
Additional paid-in capital				57,041,447
Accumulated deficit		(63,041,171)	_	(57,471,492
Total SOBR Safe, Inc. stockholders' deficit		(4,153,911)		(429,95)
Noncontrolling interest		(53,640)		(53,630
Total Stockholders' Deficit		(4,207,551)		(483,593
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit	\$	3,420,751	\$	4,209,215
		2,120,701	-	.,207,210

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

SOBR SAFE, Inc. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

	For The Three N March		
	2022	2021 (Unaudited)	
	(Unaudited)		
Revenues	\$ 1,500	\$ -	
Cost of Goods Sold	1,100	-	
Gross Profit	400	-	
Operating expenses:			
General and administrative	2,269,175	776,861	
Stock-based compensation expense	442,784	18,690	
Research and development	47,459	171,463	
Total operating expenses	2,759,418	967,014	
Loss from operations	(2,759,018)	(967,014)	
Other income (expense):			
Other income (expense), net	27	-	
Loss on debt extinguishment	(864,000)	-	
Loss on fair value adjustment - derivatives	(340,000)	-	
Interest expense	(1,026,471)	(25,878)	
Amortization of interest - beneficial conversion feature	(580,221)	(9,542)	
Total other expense, net	(2,810,665)	(35,420)	
Loss before provision for income taxes	(5,569,683)	(1,002,434)	
Provision for income tax			
Net loss	(5,569,683)	(1,002,434)	
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interest	4	94	
Net loss attributable to SOBR Safe, Inc.	<u>\$ (5,569,679)</u>	\$ (1,002,340)	
Basic and diluted loss per common share	<u>\$ (0.65</u>)	\$ (0.12)	
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding	8,550,490	8,654,108	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

SOBR SAFE, Inc. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT (UNAUDITED)

	Commo	on Stock Amount (\$0.00001 Par)	Preferr Shares	red Stock Amount (\$0.00001 Par)	Additional Paid-in Capital	Accumulated Deficit	Stockholders' Deficit SOBR Safe, Inc.	Noncontrolling Interest	Total Stockholders' Deficit
Balances at January 1, 2021	8,640,678	\$ 86	-	s -	\$ 52,694,148	\$ (49,601,220)	\$ 3,093,014	\$ (53,630)	\$ 3,039,484
Common stock issued to settle dividends - Series A- 1 Convertible Preferred stock	14,390				107,880		107,880		107,880
Paid-in capital - fair value of stock options and restricted stock units vested	-	_	-	-	105,013	-	105,013	-	105,013
Paid-in capital - fair value of stock warrants granted	-	-	-	-	619,381	-	619,381	-	619,381
Paid-in capital - beneficial conversion feature Net loss				- -	480,619	(1,002,340)	480,619 (1,002,340)	(94)	480,619 (1,002,434)
Balances at March 31, 2021	8,655,068	86			54,007,041	50,603,560	3,403,567	(53,624)	3,349,943
Balances at January 1, 2022 Common stock issued for restricted	8,778,555	<u>\$ 88</u>		<u>\$ -</u>	<u>\$ 57,041,447</u>	<u>\$ (57,471,492</u>)	<u>\$ (429,957)</u>	<u>\$ (53,636)</u>	<u>\$ (483,593)</u>
stock units Common stock	16,667	-	-	-	-	-		-	
issued for convertible debt Common stock	7,917	-	-	-	47,500	-	47,500	-	47,500
exchanged for convertible preferred stock	(1,000,000)	(10)	3,000,000	30	(20)	-	-	-	-
Paid-in capital - fair value of stock options and restricted stock									
units vested Paid-in capital - fair value of stock warrants granted	-	-	-	-	934,225 864,000	-	934,225 864,000	-	934,225 864,000
warrants granted Net loss	- -	- -	- -	-	004,000	(5,569,679)	(5,569,679)	(4)	(5,569,683)
Balances at March 31, 2022	7,803,139	<u>\$ 78</u>	3,000,000	<u>\$ 30</u>	\$ 58,887,152	<u>\$ (63,041,171</u>)	<u>\$ (4,153,911)</u>	<u>\$ (53,640)</u>	<u>\$ (4,207,551)</u>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

SOBR SAFE, Inc. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

	For The Three Marc	
	2022 (Unaudited)	2021 (Unaudited)
Operating Activities: Net loss	\$ (5,569,683)	\$ (1,002,434)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:		
Amortization	96,366	96,366
Amortization of interest - conversion features	580,221	9,542
Amortization of interest	423,782	-
Loss on extinguishment of debt	864,000	-
Change in fair value of derivative liability	340,000	-
Stock warrants expense	540,176	13,472
Stock options expense	491,441	105,013
Stock-based compensation expense	442,784	18,690
Changes in assets and liabilities:		
Accounts receivable	(500)	-
Due from related parties	-	(2,792)
Inventory	(65,489)	-
Prepaid expenses	(16,733)	5,559
Accounts payable	96,886	65,317
Accrued expenses	931,796	(30,566)
Accrued interest payable	57,696	(42,950)
Related party payables	12,437	7,533
Stock subscriptions payable	<u> </u>	88,469
Net cash used in operating activities	(774,820)	(668,781)
Financing Activities:		
Proceeds from notes payable - related parties	-	530,000
Proceeds from notes payable - non-related parties	<u> </u>	600,000
Net cash provided by financing activities	-	1,130,000
Net Change In Cash	(774,820)	461,219
Cash At The Beginning Of The Period	882,268	232,842
Cash At The End Of The Period	\$ 107,448	\$ 694.061
	<u>φ τον, πο</u>	<u> </u>
Schedule Of Non-Cash Investing And Financing Activities:		*
Non-related party debt converted to capital	\$ 47,500	\$ -
Issuance of common stock for rent	\$ -	\$ 49,600
Issuance of common stock for prior year accrued dividends	\$ -	\$ 107,880
Issuance of common stock to settle prior year stock subscriptions payable	<u> </u>	\$ 909,214
Intrinsic value-beneficial conversion feature	-	\$ 1,939,756
Conversion of common stock to preferred stock	\$ 30	\$
1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Relative fair value of stock warrants granted	<u>\$</u>	\$ 823,781
Convertible debenture payable discount	<u>\$</u>	\$ 980,000
Supplemental Disclosure:		
Cash paid for interest	<u>\$ 4,816</u>	\$ 57,378
Cash paid for income taxes	<u>\$</u>	\$ -
Cush para tot mounte anos	φ	Ψ <u></u>

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the condensed consolidated financial statements.

8

SOBR SAFE, Inc. NOTES TO THE UNAUDITED CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS March 31, 2022

NOTE 1. ORGANIZATION, OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

SOBR Safe, Inc. ("SOBR Safe"), formerly TransBiotec, Inc., was incorporated as Imagine Media LTD. in August 2007 in the State of Delaware. A corporation also named TransBiotec, Inc. ("TransBiotec – CA") was formed in the state of California July 4, 2004. Effective September 19, 2011, TransBiotec was acquired by TransBiotec - CA in a transaction classified as a reverse acquisition as the shareholders of TransBiotec - CA retained the majority of the outstanding common stock of TransBiotec after the share exchange. The consolidated financial statements represent the activity of TransBiotec - CA from July 4, 2004 forward, and the consolidated activity of SOBR Safe and TransBiotec - CA are hereinafter referred to collectively as the "Company" or "We". The Company has developed and began selling a non-invasive alcohol sensing device in 2022.

On January 7, 2022, our stockholders approved an amendment to our Articles of Incorporation to effect areverse stock split of our outstanding common stock at a ratio between of 1-for-2 and 1-for-3 in connection with our planned listing on Nasdaq. On March 4, 2022 the Board of Directors approved the reverse split ratio of 1-for-3 with the anticipated effective date of the reverse split on or about March 28, 2022. The 1-for-3 reverse stock split went effective with the State of Delaware, FINRA and OTC Markets on April 28, 2022. All share and per share amounts have been adjusted in these condensed consolidated financial statements to reflect the effect of the reverse stock split.

Also on January 7, 2022, our stockholders also approved an amendment to our 2019 Equity Incentive Plan to increase the shares authorized to be issued under the Plan from 1,282,823 shares to 1,733,333 shares.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included herein have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles ("GAAP") as promulgated in the United States of America and pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). These unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto should be read in conjunction with the Company's audited consolidated financial statements and related notes for the year ended December 31, 2021, included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 11, 2022.

In management's opinion, the unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all adjustments (including reclassifications and normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present fairly the financial position as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, and results of operations and cash flows for the three month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority owned subsidiary, TransBiotec-CA. We have eliminated all intercompany transactions and balances between entities consolidated in these unaudited condensed financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Specifically, such estimates were made by the Company for the recoverability and useful lives of long-lived assets, the intellectual technology, the valuation of the derivative instruments, beneficial conversion feature expenses, stock-based compensation and the valuation allowance related to deferred tax assets. Actual results could differ from those estimates.



Financial Instruments

Pursuant to Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") Topic 820, *Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures*, and ASC 825, *Financial Instruments*, an entity is required to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. ASC 820 and 825 establishes a fair value hierarchy based on the level of independent, objective evidence surrounding the inputs used to measure fair value. A financial instrument's categorization within the fair value hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. ASC 820 and 825 prioritizes the inputs into three levels that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1

Level 1 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2

Level 2 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets: quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets with insufficient volume or infrequent transactions (less active markets); or model-derived valuations in which significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or corroborated by, observable market data.

Level 3

Level 3 applies to assets or liabilities for which there are unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant to the measurement of the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

The Company's financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts payable, accrued expenses, accrued interest payable, related party payables, notes payable, convertible debentures, and other liabilities. Pursuant to ASC 820 and 825, the fair value of our derivative liabilities is determined based on "Level 3" inputs. We believe that the recorded values of all of our other financial instruments approximate their current fair values because of their nature and respective maturity dates or durations.

The following table presents assets and liabilities that are measured and recognized at fair value as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021:

March 31, 2022	I	Level 1	Level 2		Level 3
Derivative liabilities	\$	-	\$	- 3	5 1,380,000
December 31, 2021	I	Level 1	Level 2		Level 3
Derivative liabilities	\$	-	\$	- 3	5 1,040,000

Cash

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less as cash equivalents. The Company does not have any cash equivalents as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable is derived from sales to a limited number of customers at March 31, 2022. Customer accounts are monitored for potential credit losses based upon management's assessment of expected collectability and the allowance for doubtful accounts is reviewed periodically to assess the adequacy of the allowance. In making this assessment, management takes into consideration any circumstances of which the Company is aware regarding a customer's inability to meet its financial obligations to the Company, and any potential prevailing economic conditions and their impact on the Company's customers. The Company had no allowance for doubtful accounts at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The cost of substantially all the Company's inventory is determined by the FIFO cost method. Inventory is comprised primarily of finished products intended for sale to customers. The Company evaluates the need for reserves for excess or obsolete inventory determined primarily based upon estimates of future demand for the Company's products. At March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 the Company had no reserves for obsolescence.



Prepaid Expenses

Amounts incurred in advance of contractual performance or coverage periods are recorded as prepaid assets and recognized as expense in the period service or coverage is provided.

Beneficial Conversion Features

From time to time, the Company may issue convertible notes that may contain a beneficial conversion feature. A beneficial conversion feature exists on the date a convertible note is issued when the fair value of the underlying common stock to which the note is convertible into is in excess of the remaining unallocated proceeds of the note after first considering the allocation of a portion of the note proceeds to the fair value of the warrants, if related warrants have been granted. The intrinsic value of the beneficial conversion feature is recorded as a debt discount with a corresponding amount to additional paid-in capital. The debt discount is amortized to interest expense over the life of the note using the effective interest method.

Derivative Instruments

The Company evaluates all of its financial instruments to determine if such instruments are derivatives or contain features that qualify as embedded derivatives. For derivative financial instruments that are accounted for as liabilities, the derivative instruments are initially recorded at their fair values and are then re-valued at each reporting date, with changes in the fair value reported in the unaudited condensed consolidated statements of operations under other income (expense). The accounting treatment of derivative financial instruments requires that the Company record the embedded conversion option at its fair value as of the inception date of the agreement and at fair value as of each subsequent balance sheet date. Any change in fair value is recorded as non-operating, non-cash income or expense for each reporting period at each balance sheet date. If the classification changes as a result of events during the period, the contract is reclassified as of the date of the event that caused the reclassification. As a result of entering into warrant agreements, for which such instruments may be classified as a derivative liability with the exception of instruments related to share-based compensation issued to employees or directors. For stock-based derivative financial instruments, the Company uses a Monte Carlo Simulation model to value the derivative instruments at inception and on subsequent valuation dates.

The classification of derivative instruments, including whether such instruments should be recorded as liabilities or as equity, is evaluated at the end of each reporting period. Derivative instrument liabilities are classified in the balance sheet as current or non-current based on whether or not net-cash settlement of the derivative instrument could be required within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs incurred in connection with the issuance of debt are capitalized and amortized to interest expense over the term of the debt using the effective interest method. The unamortized amount is presented as a reduction of debt on the balance sheet.

Preferred Stock

We apply the guidance enumerated in ASC 480 "Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity" when determining the classification and measurement of preferred stock. Preferred shares subject to mandatory redemption (if any) are classified as liability instruments and are measured at fair value. We classify conditionally redeemable preferred shares (if any), which includes preferred shares that feature redemption rights that are either within the control of the holder or subject to redemption upon the occurrence of uncertain events not solely within our control, as temporary equity. At all other times, we classified our preferred shares in stockholders' equity.

Noncontrolling Interest

A subsidiary of the Company has minority members representing ownership interests of 1.38% at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021. The Company accounts for these minority, or noncontrolling interests, pursuant to ASC 810-10-65 whereby gains and losses in a subsidiary with a noncontrolling interest are allocated to the noncontrolling interest based on the ownership percentage of the noncontrolling interest, even if that allocation results in a deficit noncontrolling interest balance.



Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets and identifiable intangibles held for use are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the sum of undiscounted expected future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the asset or if changes in facts and circumstances indicate, an impairment loss is recognized and measured using the asset's fair value. No impairment loss was recognized during the three-month periods end March 31, 2022 and 2021.

Revenue Recognition

The Company enters contracts with customers and generates revenue through various combinations of software products and services which include the sale of cloud-based software solutions, detection and data collection hardware devices, and cloud-based data reporting and analysis services. Depending on the combination of products and services detailed in the respective customer contract, the identifiable components may be highly interdependent and interrelated with each other such that each is required to provide the substance of the value of SOBR's offering and accounted for as a combined performance obligation, or the specific components may be generally distinct and accounted for as separate performance obligations. Revenue is recognized when control of these software products and/or services are transferred to the customer in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for these respective services and devices.

Revenue is recognized in conjunction with guidance provided by Accounting Standards Codification Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers ("ASC 606") issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board in May 2014. The company determines revenue recognition through five steps outlined in ASC 606 which include (1) the identification of the contract or contracts with a customer, (2) identification of individual or combined performance obligations contained in the contract, (3) determination of the transaction price detailed within the contract, (4) allocation of the transaction price to the specific performance obligations, and (5) finally, recognition of revenue as the Company's performance obligations are satisfied according to the terms of the contract.

Contracts with a Single License/Service Performance Obligation

For contracts with a single performance obligation consisting of a license and/or data services, the entire transaction price is allocated to the single performance obligation and recognized at a point in time. Where the Company provides a performance obligation as licensed software or data services, revenue is recognized upon delivery of the software or services ratably over the respective term of the contract.

Contracts for Purchase of Hardware Devices Only

Where hardware devices are sold separately by the Company, the entire transaction price is allocated to the device as an individual performance obligation and revenue recognized at a point in time when either legal title, physical possession or control have transferred to the customer. Generally, these requirements are satisfied at the point in time the Company ships the product, as this is when the customer obtains control of the asset under SOBR's standard terms and conditions of the purchase.

Contracts with Multiple Performance Obligations

Where a Company's contract with a respective customer contains multiple performance obligations and due to the interdependent and interrelated nature of the licensed software, hardware devices and data reporting services, the Company accounts for the individual performance obligations if they are distinct in nature and the transaction price is allocated to each distinct performance obligations on a directly observable standalone sales price basis. Determining whether products and services are distinct performance obligation is sold separately or combined as one unit of accounting requires significant judgment. Standalone selling prices are primarily based upon the price at which the performance obligation is sold separately. The Company may be able to establish a standalone sales price based upon observable products or services sold or priced separately in comparable circumstances, competitor pricing or similar customers. Where the performance obligations are either not distinct or directly observable, the Company estimates the standalone sales price of the performance obligations the value of the contract arrangement, number of licenses, number and types of hardware devices and the length of term of the contract. Professional judgement is required to determine the standalone sales price for each performance obligation as allocated under the prescribed Transaction Price identification model applied.

The Company requires customers to make payments related to subscribed software licenses and data services on a monthly basis via authorized bank account ACH withdrawal or an automatic credit card charge during the approved term of the respective agreement. The collectability of future cash flows are reasonably assured with any potential non-payment easily identified with future services being discontinued or suspended due to non-payment.

The Company's contracts are generally twelve to thirty-six months in duration, are billed monthly in advance and are non-cancelable. The timing of revenue recognition may differ from the timing of invoicing to customers. The Company generally has an unconditional right to consideration when customers are invoiced and a receivable is recorded. A contract asset (unbilled revenue) is recognized when revenue is recognized prior to invoicing, or a contract liability (deferred revenue) when revenue will be recognized subsequent to invoicing.

The Company has elected to charge shipping, freight and delivery to customers as a source of revenue to offset respective costs when control has transferred to the customer.

We report revenue net of sales and other taxes collected from customers to be remitted to government authorities.

Estimated costs for the Company's standard one-year warranty are charged to cost of products sold when revenue is recorded for the related product. Royalties are also charged to cost of products sold.

Stock-based Compensation

The Company follows the guidance of the accounting provisions of ASC 718, *Share-based Compensation*, which requires the use of the fair-value based method to determine compensation for all arrangements under which employees and others receive shares of stock or equity instruments (warrants, options, and restricted stock units). The fair value of each warrant and option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes options pricing model that uses assumptions for expected volatility, expected dividends, expected term, and the risk-free interest rate. The Company has not paid dividends historically and does not expect to pay them in the future. Expected volatilities are based on weighted averages of the historical volatility of the Company's common stock estimated over the expected term of the awards. The expected term of options granted is derived using the "simplified method" which computes expected term as the average of the sum of the vesting term plus the contract term as historically the Company had limited activity surrounding its awards. The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant for the period of the expected term. The grant date fair value of a restricted stock unit equals the closing price of our common stock on the trading day of the grant date.

Research and Development

The Company accounts for its research and development costs pursuant to ASC 730, whereby it requires the Company to disclose the amounts of costs for company and customer-sponsored research and development activities, if material. Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. The Company incurred research and development costs as it acquired new knowledge to bring about significant improvements in the functionality and design of its SOBR product. Research and development costs were \$47,459 and \$171,463 during the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Advertising and Marketing Costs

Advertising and marketing costs are charged to operations as incurred. Advertising and marketing costs were \$30,185 and \$26,242 during the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and are included in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.

Income Tax

The Company accounts for income taxes pursuant to ASC 740. Under ASC 740 deferred taxes are provided on a liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and operating loss carry forwards and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment. The Company has not recorded any deferred tax assets or liabilities at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 as these have been offset by a 100% valuation allowance.



Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss attributable to common stockholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Diluted loss per share gives the effect to all dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period, including stock options, warrants and convertible instruments. Diluted net loss per share excludes all potentially issuable shares if their effect is anti-dilutive. Because the effect of the Company's dilutive securities is anti-dilutive, diluted net loss per share is the same as basic loss per share for the periods presented.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Credit Risk – Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration of credit risk consisted primarily of cash. The Company maintains its cash at one domestic financial institution. The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of a default by the financial institution to the extent that cash is in excess of the amount insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Company places its cash with high-credit quality financial institutions and are managed within established guidelines to mitigate risk. To date, the Company has not experienced any loss on its cash.

Concentration of Customers – The Company has conducted limited sales during the three-months ending March 31, 2022 to two customers. Should the Company continue to conduct sales to a limited number of customers and remain highly concentrated, revenue may experience significant period to period shifts and may decline if the Company were to lose one or more of its customers, or if the Company were unable to obtain new customers upon the completion of sales agreements.

Concentration of Suppliers – The Company relies on a limited number of components and contract suppliers to assemble its product. If supplier shortages occur, or quality problems arise, production schedules could be significantly delayed or costs significantly increased, which could in turn have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial condition, results of operations and cash flow.

Related Parties

Related parties are any entities or individuals that, through employment, ownership, or other means, possess the ability to direct or cause the direction of the management and policies of the Company.

Recently Issued Accounting Guidance

In August 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-06, *Debt—Debt with Conversion and Other Options (Subtopic 470-20) and Derivatives and Hedging—Contracts in Entity's Own Equity (Subtopic 815-40): Accounting for Convertible Instruments and Contracts in an Entity's Own Equity, which address issues identified as a result of the complexity associated with applying generally accepted accounting principles for certain financial instruments with characteristics of liabilities and equity. This amendment is effective for public business entities that meet the definition of a SEC filer, excluding entities eligible to be smaller reporting companies as defined by the SEC, for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, including interim periods within those fiscal years. For all other entities, the amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted, but no earlier than fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, including interim periods within those fiscal years. For all other adoption of ASU 2020-06 guidance on the Company's financial position, results of operations and cash flows.*

The Company has reviewed other recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting pronouncements and does not believe the future adoptions of any such pronouncements will be expected to cause a material impact on its financial condition or the results of operations.



NOTE 2. GOING CONCERN

The Company has incurred recurring losses from operations and has limited cash liquidity and capital resources. Future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including the Company's ability to sell and develop products, cash flow from operations, and competing market developments. The Company will need additional capital in the near future. Sources of debt financing may result in high interest expense. Any financing, if available, may be on unfavorable terms.

As of March 31, 2022, the Company has an accumulated deficit of approximately (\$3,000,000). During the three-months ended March 31, 2022, the Company also experienced negative cash flows from operating activities of approximately (\$775,000). The Company is in default on a \$3,048,781 convertible debenture due March 27, 2022 subject to penalties, damages and interest of approximately \$1,100,000 (see Notes 8 and 9). It appears these principal conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, indicate it is probable that the Company will be unable to meet its obligations as they become due within one year after the date the financial statements are issued. As such, there is substantial doubt about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company has identified factors that mitigate the probable conditions that have raised substantial doubt about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern.

On May 18, 2022, we received approximately \$8,779,000 of net proceeds from the sale of an underwritten public offering of2,352,942 units (Units) at a public offering price of \$4.25 per Unit, with each Unit consisting of one share of our Common Stock, par value \$0.00001, and two warrants each to purchase one share of Common Stock. The Warrants included in the Units are exercisable immediately and have an exercise price of \$4.25 per share (100% of the price per Unit sold in the offering). The Warrants will not be listed for trading and will expire five years from the date of their issuance. On May 19, 2022, the \$3,048,781 principal balance of the Armistice Capital Master Fund, Ltd 18% Original Issue Discount Convertible Debenture in default at March 31, 2022, was paid in full satisfying all amounts due and accrued under the default, including penalty, damages and interest provisions of the loan agreement (see Note 16).

Management believes that the net offering proceeds of approximately \$5,729,000, after the payment of the defaulted loan balance of \$3,048,781, provides adequate working capital for operating activities for the next twelve months after the date the financial statements are issued. However, convertible notes payable plus interest at 12% per annum are due 24 months from issuance. Total principal balances of the convertible notes at March 31, 2022 are \$2,005,000 and are due \$1,100,000, \$155,000 and \$750,000 in March 2023, April 2023 and May 2023, respectively. The notes are convertible at \$9 per share of the Company's common stock. The notes contain both voluntary and automatic conversion features. The notes may be convertible at any time, by the holders, beginning on the date of issuance. The notes automatically convert into shares of the Company's common stock if the Company's common stock closes at or above \$6 per share for five (5) consecutive trading days while listed on Nasdaq. Should the notes not automatically underwritten public offering.

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization ("WHO") announced a global health emergency because of a new strain of coronavirus originating in Wuhan, China (the "COVID-19 outbreak") and the risks to the international community as the virus spreads globally beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19 outbreak as a pandemic, based on the rapid increase in exposure globally. The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak and related variants continues to evolve as of the date of this report. Management is actively monitoring the global situation on its financial condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, industry, and workforce. Given the daily evolution of the COVID-19 outbreak, its variants and the global responses to curb its spread, the Company is not able to estimate the effects of the COVID-19 outbreak on its results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity for fiscal year 2022. However, if the pandemic continues, it may have an adverse effect on the Company's results of future operations, financial position, and liquidity in fiscal year 2022.

Management believes the net proceeds received from the underwritten public offering and actions presently being taken to generate product and services revenues provide the opportunity for the Company to continue as a going concern; however, these plans are contingent upon actions to be performed by the Company and these conditions have not been met on or before March 31, 2022. Additionally, the COVID-19 outbreak could have a continued material adverse impact on economic and market conditions and trigger a period of global economic slowdown, which could impair the Company's ability to raise needed funds to continue as a going concern. As such, substantial doubt about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern was not alleviated as of March 31, 2022.

NOTE 3. ASSET PURCHASE

On June 5, 2020, the Company completed a transaction (the "Transaction") with IDTEC subject to the terms and conditions of the Asset Purchase Agreement (the "APA"). The Transaction, recorded as an asset purchase, was valued at \$29,222,955, which consists of the market price as of June 5, 2020 of the Company's 4,000,000 shares of common stock issued totaling \$27,120,000, the value of the APA Note Payable for funds spent by IDTEC and affiliates prior to closing of \$1,407,501, and the fair value of warrants issued to IDTEC under a Waiver Under Purchase Asset Agreement and Post Closing Covenant Agreement to purchase 106,667 shares of common stock at an exercise price of \$1.50 per share which expires five years after the date of issuance of \$695,454.

In determining the fair value of the intangible assets, the Company considered, among other factors, the best use of acquired assets such as the analysis of historical financial performance of the products and estimates of future performance of the products and intellectual properties acquired. The allocation to identifiable intangible assets required extensive use of financial information and management's best estimate of fair value. The Company identified and allocated the value of the asset purchase to intangible assets of \$29,175,203 and property and equipment of \$47,725.

Subsequent to the Transaction closing, the Company evaluated the fair value of the assets acquired based on discounted net cash flow for the SOBR Safe intellectual technology and market estimates for property and equipment. Based on the assessment of fair value, the Company recognized an asset impairment loss of \$25,320,555 during the year ended December 31, 2020.

Intangible assets	\$ 29,175,230
Less: Asset impairment	25,320,555
Intangible assets, net of impairment	\$ 3,874,965

NOTE 4. INVENTORY

Inventory at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 consisted of the following:

	March 31, 2022	December 31, 2021	
Raw materials	\$ 51,050	\$ -	
Finished goods	53,900	39,461	
Inventory, net	<u>\$ 104,950</u>	\$ 39,461	

NOTE 5. PREPAID EXPENSES

Prepaid expenses consist of the following:

	Ma	March 31, Decem		ember 31,
		2022	2021	
Insurance	\$	4,286	\$	4,286
Consulting services		25,000		8,267
Prepaid expenses	\$	29,286	\$	12,553

On February 26, 2021, the Company entered into a new lease agreement for its office facility for a 12-month term beginning March 1, 2021. In addition to monthly base rent of \$6,000, the agreement required the issuance of 5,333 shares of its common stock valued at \$49,600. Stock-based compensation expense related to this agreement for the three-month periods ending March 31, 2022 and 2021 are \$8,267 and \$4,133, respectively.



NOTE 6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets consist of the following at December 31, 2021:

SOBR Safe	Gros Carryi Amou	ing Accumulated	Net Intangible Asset	Amortization Period (in years)
Intellectual Technology	\$ 3,854	4,675 \$ 610,318	\$ 3,244,357	10
Intangible assets consist of the following at March 31, 2022: SOBR Safe	Gros: Carryi Amou	ing Accumulated	Net Intangible Asset	Amortization Period (in years)
Intellectual Technology	\$ 3,854	4,675 \$ 706,684	\$ 3,147,991	10

Amortization expense for the three-month period ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 was \$6,366 and \$96,366, respectively, and is included in general and administrative expenses in the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Estimated future amortization expense for device technology intangible assets is as follows:

 2023	 2024	2025	 2026	2027		 Thereafter
\$ 385,467	\$ 385,467	\$ 385,467	\$ 385,467	\$	385,467	\$ 1,220,656

NOTE 7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On February 12, 2021, the Company entered into a note payable agreement with David Gandini, an officer and shareholder, under which Mr. Gandini advanced the Company \$30,000 for working capital purposes. The unsecured note carried interest at0% and was paid in April 2021.

On March 30, 2021, the Company received notification from IDTEC that it was exercising a portion of the 106,667 warrants issued resulting from the 2020 Waiver Under Asset Purchase Agreement and Post-Closing Covenant Agreement with IDTEC. The warrant exercise price is \$1.50 per share. With the proceeds of the exercise, the Company paid \$88,469 during the three-month period ended December 31, 2021 to settle an outstanding judgement against the Company which was considered as a non-permitted liability under the Post-Closing Covenant Agreement. We issued 58,980 shares of our common stock for the \$8,470 we received from IDTEC to pay the settlement. As the shares had not been issued by March 31, 2021, the amount received from IDTEC was included in the common stock subscriptions payable balance at March 31, 2021.

On March 3 and 31, 2021, the Company issued convertible notes payable (see Note 10) totaling \$50,000 to existing shareholders holding a direct or indirect interest in the Company and \$200,000 to a Company's director and another director's family member. The principal amount of the secured convertible debentures are convertible at \$9 per share, and include warrants to purchase in total 91,667 shares of the Company's common stock at \$9 per share.

On May 31, 2021, the Company issued convertible notes payable (see Note 10) totaling \$00,000 to existing shareholders holding a direct or indirect interest in the Company and \$50,000 to a Company's officer. The principal amount of the secured convertible debentures are convertible at \$9 per share, and include warrants to purchase in total 75,000 shares of the Company's common stock at \$9 per share.

On March 1, 2022 the Board of Directors approved the designation of 3,000,000 shares of the Company's Preferred Stock as "Series B Convertible Preferred Stock". The Series B Convertible Preferred Stock shares were issued in exchange for 1,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock held by the Company's CEO David Gandini and 2,000,000 shares of the Company's common stock held by IDTEC SPV, LLC, an entity controlled by a beneficial owner of the Company (see Note 13).

NOTE 8. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following:

	Μ	March 31, 2022		,		cember 31, 2021
Convertible debt default penalty (see Note 9)	\$	914,634	\$	-		
Registration rights and default damages and penalties (see Note 9)		192,399		189,663		
Consulting services		178,647		163,647		
Taxes and other		110,016		110,590		
Accrued expenses	\$	1,395,696	\$	463,900		

NOTE 9. CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURE PAYABLE

Convertible debenture payable consists of the following:

	March 31,	December 31,
	2022	2021
Convertible Debenture Payable with Detached Free-standing Warrant	\$ 3,048,781	\$ 3,048,781
Unamortized Debt Discount		(1,291,882)
Net Convertible Debenture Payable	\$ 3,048,781	\$ 1,756,899

On September 28, 2021, (the "Closing Date") the Company completed a financing transaction under a Securities Purchase Agreement (the "SPA") and corresponding 18% Original Issue Discount Convertible Debenture (the "Debenture"), Common Stock Purchase Warrant (the "Original Warrant") and Registration Rights Agreement ("RRA"). Under the terms of the SPA, the Company received \$2,500,000 from the Purchaser and in exchange issued the Debenture in the principal amount of \$3,048,781 and Original Warrants to purchase up to 406,504 shares of the Company's common stock. The Debenture is convertible voluntarily by the Purchaser at any time into shares of our common stock, at the lesser of \$7.50, representing 100% of the closing price of our common stock on the trading day immediately prior to the Closing Date, or 75% of the average VWAP of our common stock during the 5 trading day period immediately prior to the conversion date (the "Conversion Price"), or automatically upon the occurrence of a single public offering of our common stock which results in the listing of our common stock on a national securities exchange as defined in the Exchange Act (the "Qualified Offering") into shares of our common stock at the lesser of the Conversion Price, or 75% of the offering price of the securities offered in the Qualified Offering. The Debenture due date is March 27, 2022, does not accrue interest unless there is an event of default under the terms of the Debenture. The Original Warrant is exercisable at any time through September 28, 2026 into shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$6.00 per share, unless an event of default occurs, at which time the exercise price will adjust to \$3.00 per share. The Original Warrant contains a cashless exercise provision but only in the event the Company fails to have an effective registration statement registering the common shares underlying the Original Warrant at any time beginning six months from the Closing Date The RRA requires the Company to register for resale and maintain effectiveness of such Registration Statement for such all of the registrable securities under the terms of the Debenture and Original Warrant, within defined time frames. Should the Company fail to meet the RRA requirements, until the date causing such event of noncompliance is cured, Company shall pay to the Purchaser as partial liquidated damages equal to the product of 2% of the principal amount not to exceed 24% of the aggregate principal. If the Company fails to pay of the liquidated damages within seven days after the date payable, the Company will pay interest at 18% until such amounts are paid in full. The filing date requirements were cured in February 2022. Total unpaid RRA damages and estimated related costs of approximately \$192,399 and \$189,700, are included in accrued expenses at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 (see Note 8). Damage expenses included in general and administrative expenses in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations were \$2,736 and none for the threemonth periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021.



The Debenture matured on March 27, 2022 and the Company did not make the required principal payment putting the Company in default under the terms of the Debenture. On March 30, 2022, we entered into a Waiver Agreement with the Purchaser, under which the Purchaser granted the Company a waiver of the default penalties under the Debenture such that any default penalties will not be charged and/or due until April 17, 2022 (the "Waiver"). Default penalties at the Purchaser's election are due and payable at the Mandatory Default Amount defined as the sum of (a) the greater of (i) the outstanding principal amount of this Debenture, plus all accrued and unpaid interest hereon, divided by the Conversion Price on the date the Mandatory Default Amount is either (A) demanded or otherwise due or (B) paid in full, whichever has a lower Conversion Price, multiplied by the VWAP on the date the Mandatory Default Amount is either (x) demanded or otherwise due or (y) paid in full, whichever has a higher VWAP, or (ii) 130% of the outstanding principal amount of this Debenture, As the default had not been cured through the Waiver date, mandatory default penalties of \$914,634 are included in general and administrative expense in the Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations for the three-months ended March 31, 2022 and included in accrued expenses at March 31, 2022 (see Note 8).

In exchange for the Waiver of the default penalties the Company agreed to: (i) amend that certain Common Stock Warrant (the "Original Warrant") issued by the Company to the Purchaser dated September 27, 2021 to extend the Termination Date (as defined in the Original Warrant) from September 28, 2026 to September 28, 2028; and (ii) issue the Purchaser a second Common Stock Purchase Warrant (the "New Warrant") entitling the Purchaser to subscribe for and purchase up to an additional 101,626 shares of our common stock, expiring March 29, 2029, with all other terms of the warrant the same as the Original Warrant. We also agreed, within thirty (30) days of the date of the Waiver, to file a Registration Statement on Form S-1 (or, if such form is unavailable for such a registration, on such other form as is available for such registration), covering the resale of all of the shares underlying the New Warrant. As a result of the default event, Debenture's automatic conversion features upon the occurrence of a Qualified Offering no longer apply and interest accrues at 18% per annum on the principal amount.

The Company evaluated the Debenture for embedded derivative and beneficial conversion features and determined that its embedded conversion feature carried a debt discount. The total conversion feature debt discount of \$980,000 is amortized over the life of the convertible debenture. The debt discount amortization expense recorded as amortization of interest in the condensed consolidated statements of operations was \$465,635 and none for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. As of March 31, 2022, the debenture carries outstanding warrants of 508,130. The relative fair value of the related stock warrants granted during the three-month periods ended March 31, 2021 was \$864,000 and none, respectively. The unamortized discount at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was none and \$402,465, respectively. Stock warrants amortization expense recorded as interest expense was \$465,635 and none for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

As a result of the change in the Original Warrant extended termination date and the New Warrant issued in exchange for the Waiver, the Company evaluated the reacquisition price of the Debenture under ASC 470-50-40-2 to be \$3,912,781. As the net carrying amount of the Debenture is \$3,048,781, a loss on extinguishment of debt of \$864,000 was recognized during the three-month period ended March 31, 2022.

The Company incurred \$548,781 of original issue discount and \$275,000 of debt issuance costs related to the Debenture which was being amortized to interest expense over the term of the debt using the effective interest method. The unamortized discount and issuance costs at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was none and \$423,782, respectively. Interest expense related to the original issue discount and debt issuance costs was \$423,782 and none for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE 10. NOTES PAYABLE

RELATED PARTIES

Related party notes payable consist of the following:

	March 31, 2022	De	ecember 31, 2021
Convertible Notes Payable with Detached Free-standing Warrants	\$ 1,000,000	\$	1,000,000
Conventional Non-Convertible Notes Payable	11,810		11,810
Unamortized Debt Discount	 (522,262)		(645,547)
Net Related Party Notes Payable	\$ 489,548	\$	366,263
Current Portion	(302,152)		(11,810)
Net Long-Term Portion	\$ 187,396	\$	354,453

Total interest expense for related party notes was \$\$85,889 and \$3,847 for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Related Party Convertible Notes Payable with Detached Free-Standing Warrants

The Company has thirteen convertible notes payable to related parties, each with detached free-standing warrants to purchase the Company's common stock at 9 per share. that have a total principal balance of \$1,000,000 as of March 31, 2022. The notes, secured by the Company's patents and patents applications, include interest at12%, are convertible at \$9 per share of the Company's common stock and are due 24 months after issuance. The note holders may elect to have the interest paid in cash monthly or have the interest accrue and be payable on the maturity date. Interest elected to be accrued will be paid in cash or may be converted into shares of our common stock under the same terms as the principal amount on the maturity date. The notes contain both voluntary and automatic conversion features. The notes will be convertible at any time, by the holders, beginning on the date of issuance. However, the holders may not convert any outstanding amounts due under the note if at the time of such conversion the amount of common stock issued for the conversion, when added to other shares of Company common stock owned by the holders or which can be acquired by holders upon exercise or conversion of any other instrument, would cause the holder to own more than 4.9% of the Company's outstanding common stock. Beginning on the issuance date, the outstanding principal amount of the note, and any accrued interest, will automatically convert into shares of the Company's common stock if the Company's common stock closes at or above \$6 per share for five (5) consecutive trading days while listed on NASDAQ. The Company evaluated the convertible notes payable for embedded derivative and beneficial conversion features. The Company determined that there were beneficial conversion features to record. The total beneficial conversion feature debt discount of \$448,999 is amortized over the life of the convertible notes payable. The debt discount amortization expense recorded as amortization of interest - beneficial conversion feature in the condensed consolidated statements of operations was \$55,356 and \$6,361 for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The unamortized beneficial conversion feature was \$235,986 and \$291,343 at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. As of March 31, 2022, these notes carry outstanding warrants of 166,667. The relative fair value of the related stock warrants granted during the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 was none and \$287,781, respectively. Stock warrants amortization expense recorded as interest expense was \$67,932 and \$8,981 for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The unamortized discount at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 is \$286,274 and \$354,205, respectively.

Conventional Non-convertible Notes Payable

The Company has one non-convertible note payable to a related party that has a principal balance of \$1,810 as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021. The note carries an interest rate at 0%. The note payable had a due date of December 31, 2012 and is currently in default.



NON-RELATED PARTIES

Non-related party notes payable consist of the following:

			Γ	December
	N	1arch 31,		31,
Convertible Notes Payable with Detached Free-standing Warrants	¢	2022	¢	2021 1,005,000
Convertible Notes Payable with Detached Free-standing warrants	φ	9,183	Φ	56,683
Conventional Non-Convertible Notes Payable		42,500		42,500
Notes Payable with Detached Free-standing Warrants		5,000		5,000
Unamortized Debt Discount		(519,571)		(648,580)
Net Non-Related Party Notes Payable	\$	542,112	\$	460,603
Current Portion		(348,508)		(104,183)
Net Long-Term Portion	\$	193,604	\$	356,420

Total interest expense for non-related party notes was \$129,009 and \$5,141 for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Convertible Notes Payable with Warrants

The Company has sixteen convertible notes payable to non-related parties, each with detached free-standing warrants to purchase the Company's common stock at 9 per share, that have a total principal balance of \$1,005,000 as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021. The notes, secured by the Company's patents and patents applications, include interest at 12%, are convertible at \$9 per share of the Company's common stock and are due 24 months after issuance. The note holders may elect to have the interest paid in cash monthly or have the interest accrue and be payable on the maturity date. Interest elected to be accrued will be paid in cash or may be converted into shares of our common stock under the same terms as the principal amount on the maturity date. The notes contain both voluntary and automatic conversion features. The notes will be convertible at any time, by the holders, beginning on the date of issuance. However, the holders may not convert any outstanding amounts due under the note if at the time of such conversion the amount of common stock issued for the conversion, when added to other shares of Company common stock owned by the holders or which can be acquired by holders upon exercise or conversion of any other instrument, would cause the holder to own more than 4.9% of the Company's outstanding common stock. Beginning on the issuance date, the outstanding principal amount of the note, and any accrued interest, will automatically convert into shares of the Company's common stock if the Company's common stock closes at or above \$6 per share for five (5) consecutive trading days while listed on NASDAQ. The Company evaluated the convertible notes payable for derivative embedded and beneficial conversion features. The Company determined that there were beneficial conversion features to record. The total beneficial conversion feature debt discount of \$460,215 is amortized over the life of the convertible notes payable. The debt discount recorded as amortization of interest - beneficial conversion feature in the consolidated statements of operations was \$59,230 and \$3,181 for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021. As of March 31, 2022, these notes carry outstanding warrants of 167,500. The relative fair value of the related stock warrants granted during the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 was none and \$41,707, respectively. Stock warrants amortization expense recorded as interest expense was \$69,780 and \$4,491 for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021. The unamortized discount at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 was \$281,646 and \$351,425, respectively.

Convertible Notes Payable

The Company has two unsecured, convertible notes payable to non-related parties that have a principal balance of 9,183 as of March 31, 2022 and three convertible notes payable to non-related parties that have a principal balance of 55,683 as of December 31, 2021. These notes carry interest rates ranging from 5% - 12% and have due dates ranging from February 2013 to March 2022. Notes with principal balances of 9,183 are in default at March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021. These notes carry a conversion price of 56,00 to 32.29 per share. On March 3, 2022 the Company authorized the issuance of 7,917 shares of common stock under the terms of a 47,500 convertible note payable issued March 6, 2020 with interest at 5%, due March 6, 2022 and convertible at 56.00 per share. The Company evaluated these convertible notes payable for embedded derivative and beneficial conversion features. The Company determined that there were beneficial conversion features to record. The beneficial conversion features were either fully amortized upon grant or over the life of the convertible notes payable.

Non-convertible Notes Payable

The Company has three unsecured, non-convertible notes payable to non-related parties that have a principal balance of \$42,500 as of March 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021. These notes carry interest rates ranging from 5% - 10% and have due dates ranging from December 2013 to June 2022. Two of the three notes are currently in default.



Notes Payable with Warrants

The Company has one unsecured, note payable with detached free-standing warrants to a non-related party that has a principal balance of ,000 as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021. This note carries an interest rate of 10% and had a due date of September 2014. This note is currently in default. The detached free-standing warrants for this note payable were not exercised by the note holder and expired in 2019.

NOTE 11. DERIVATIVE LIABILITY

In September 2021, the Company completed a financing transition and received \$2,500,000 from the Purchaser and in exchange issued an18% Original Issue Discount Convertible Debenture in the principal amount of \$3,048,781. The debenture includes voluntary and automatic conversion features at a variable conversion prices convertible into the Company's common shares at an undetermined future date. The Company analyzed the conversion features of the debenture agreement for derivative accounting consideration under ASU 2017-11 (ASC 815-15, Derivatives and Hedging), and determined the embedded conversion features should be classified as a derivative because the exercise price of the convertible note is subject to a variable conversion rate and should therefore be accounted for at fair value under ASC 820, *Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures*, and ASC 825, *Financial Instruments*. In accordance with ASC 815-15, the Company bifurcated the conversion feature of the debenture and recorded a derivative liability.

The embedded derivative for the debenture is carried on the Company's balance sheet at fair value. The derivative liability is marked to market each measurement period and any unrealized change in fair value is recorded as a component of the consolidated statement of operations and the associated fair value carrying amount on the balance sheet was adjusted by the change. The Company fair valued the embedded derivative using a Monte Carlo simulation model based on the following assumptions: (1) expected volatility of 120%, (2) risk-free interest rate of 0.05%, and (3) expected life from 4 to 6 months. On September 28, 2021, the Closing Date of the transaction, the fair value of the embedded derivative was \$980,000 and is amortized to interest expense over the term of the Debenture. Utilizing level 3 inputs, the Company recorded a fair value loss of \$340,000 for the three-month period ended March 31, 2022. The fair value of the embedded derivative recorded on the balance sheet as a liability was \$,380,000 at March 31, 2022.

A summary of the activity of the derivative liability is shown below:

Balance at December 31, 2021	\$	1,040,000
Fair value of derivatives issued		-
Fair value adjustments		340,000
Balance at March 31, 2022	<u>\$</u>	1,380,000

NOTE 12. COMMON STOCK

The Company's common stock transactions for the three-months ended March 31, 2021, consist of the following:

The Company issued 14,390 shares of its common stock to SOBR Safe, LLC, an entity controlled by a beneficial owner of the Company, in full satisfaction of \$07,880 of accrued dividends resulting from the December 2020 conversion of the Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock into common shares, see Note 13.

The Company's common stock transactions for the three-months ended March 31, 2022, consist of the following:

The Company issued 16,667 shares of its common stock for RSUs vested during 2021.

The Company issued 7,917 shares of common stock under the terms of a \$47,500 convertible note payable.

The Company exchanged 1,000,000 shares of common stock for 3,000,000 shares of Series B convertible preferred stock (see Note 13).

NOTE 13. PREFERRED STOCK

On November 20, 2015, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a class of stock designated as preferred stock with a par value of \$0.00001 per share comprising 25,000,000 shares, 3,000,000 shares of which were classified as Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. In each calendar year, the holders of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are entitled to receive, when, as and if, declared by the Board of Directors, out of any funds and assets of the Company legally available, non-cumulative dividends, in an amount equal to any dividends or other Distribution on the common stock in such calendar year (other than a Common Stock Dividend). No dividends (other than a Common Stock Dividend) shall be paid and no distribution shall be made with respect to the common stock unless dividends shall have been paid or declared and set apart for payment to the holders of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock simultaneously. Dividends on the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock shall not be mandatory or cumulative, and no rights or interest shall accrue to the holders of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock by reason of the fact that the Company shall fail to declare or pay dividends on the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, except for such rights or interest that may arise as a result of the Company paying a dividend or making a distribution on the common stock in violation of the terms. The holders of each share of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid, out of the Available Funds and Assets, and prior and in preference to any payment or Distribution (or any setting part of any payment or Distribution) of any Available Funds and Assets on any shares of common stock, and equal in preference to any payment or Distribution (or any setting part of any payment or Distribution) of any Available Funds and Assets on any shares of any other series of preferred stock that have liquidation preference, an amount per share equal to the Original Issue Price of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock plus all declared but unpaid dividends on the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock. A reorganization, or any other consolidation or merger of the Company with or into any other corporation, or any other sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, shall not be deemed a liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Company. Shares of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock are convertible at a 35% discount rate to the average closing price per share of the Company's common stock (either as listed on a national exchange or as quoted over-the-market) for the last 15 trading days immediately prior to conversion. However, no conversions of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock to shares of common stock can occur unless the average closing price per share of the Company's common stock (either as listed on a national exchange or as quoted over-the-market) for the last 15 trading days immediately prior to conversion is at least \$5.01. The shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock vote on a one for one basis. The right of conversion is limited by the fact the holder of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock may not convert if such conversion would cause the holder to beneficially own more than 4.9% of the Company's common stock after giving effect to such conversion.

On December 9, 2019, the Company's Board of Directors created a class of preferred stock designated as 8% Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock comprising of2,000,000 shares. During 2020, the authorized shares were increased to 2,700,000 shares. The rights and preferences of the 8% Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock are as follows: (a) dividend rights of 8% per annum based on the original issuance price of \$1 per share, (b) liquidation preference over the Company's common stock, (c) conversion rights into shares of the Company's common stock at \$1 per share (not to be affected by any reverse stock split in connection with the Asset Purchase Agreement with IDTEC), (d) redemption rights such that we have the right, upon 30 days written notice, at any time after one year from the date of issuance, to redeem all or part of the Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock for 150% of the original issuance price, (e) no call rights by the Company, and (f) each share of Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock will vote on an "as converted" basis.

On December 12, 2019, the Company entered into a Series A-1 Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement (the "SPA") with SOBR SAFE, LLC ("SOBR SAFE"), a Delaware limited liability company and an entity controlled by a beneficial owner of the Company, under which SOBR SAFE agreed to acquire 1,000,000 shares of our Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock in exchange for \$1,000,000 (the "Purchase Price"). The Company received the Purchase Price on December 12, 2019.

On May 7, 2020, the Company amended a Convertible Preferred Stock Investment Agreement granting the exclusive right to SOBR SAFE to purchase up to2,700,000 shares of Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock.

On July 2, 2020, the Company executed Amendment No. 2 to the Stock Investment Agreement which provides that the full amount of each dividend due on a dividend payment date, even if not declared, shall be paid to any holder regardless of the date on which the holder acquired the stock.

The Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock earns cumulative dividends at a rate of 8% per annum, payable in cash or common stock at the option of the Company on June 30 and December 31 of each year. If paid in common stock, the common stock will be valued at the average of the closing price for the five business days prior to the dividend payment date. The preferred shareholders will participate in any common stock dividends on an as converted basis. On December 7, 2020, we sent a Notice of Automatic Conversion and Calculation of Dividend Shares to SOBR SAFE notifying them that under the terms governing the shares of Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock the 2,700,000 shares of Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock we owed SOBR SAFE automatically converted into 900,000 shares of our common stock. In addition, as a result of the conversion of the Series A-1 Convertible Preferred Stock we owed SOBR SAFE accrued dividends totaling \$107,880, which we could pay in cash or in shares of our common stock based on the price of common stock on the applicable dividend dates. Our management and Board of Directors elected to pay SOBR SAFE the accrued dividends in shares of our common stock.

On March 1, 2022 the Board of Directors approved the designation of 3,000,000 shares of the Company's Preferred Stock as "Series B Convertible Preferred Stock". The 3,000,000 Series B Convertible Preferred Stock shares were issued in exchange for333,333 shares of the Company's common stock held by the Company's CEO David Gandini and 666,667 shares of the Company's common stock held by IDTEC SPV, LLC, an entity controlled by a beneficial owner of the Company. The Company entered into the Share Exchange Agreements to provide certain changes to its capital structure in connection with the planned underwriting offering and listing on Nasdaq. The rights and preferences of the Series B Convertible Preferred Stock are as follows: (a) dividends shall not be mandatory or cumulative, (b) liquidation preference over the Company's common stock, (c) each three shares of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, and without the payment of additional consideration by the holder , into one share of common stock, (d) no redemption rights by the Company, (e) no call rights by the Company, and (f) each share of Series B Convertible Preferred Stock will vote on an "as converted" basis. As the comvertible preferred stock contain voting rights and other comparable features to the common stock it was exchanged for, the exchange resulted in no transfer of value from the common stockholders to the preferred stockholders as included in the condensed consolidated statement of changes in stockholders deficit for the three months ended March 31, 2022.

NOTE 14. STOCK WARRANTS, STOCK OPTIONS AND RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS

The Company accounts for share-based compensation stock options and restricted stock units, and non-employee stock warrants under ASC 718, whereby costs are recorded based on the fair value of the consideration received or the fair value of the equity instruments issued, whichever is more reliably measurable, utilizing the Black-Scholes pricing model for stock options and warrants, and the closing price of our common stock on the grant date for restricted stock units. Unless otherwise provided for, the Company covers equity instrument exercises by issuing new shares.

Stock Warrants

During March, April and May 2021, the Company issued through the Offering convertible notes payable with warrants, (see Note 10), to purchase up to 34,167 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$9 per share. The warrants expire two years after the date of issuance.

On September 28, 2021 and March 30, 2022 the Company issued through the sale of the Debenture Original Warrants and New Warrants, (see Note 9), to purchase up to 406,504 and 101,626, respectively, shares of our common stock at an exercise price of **%** per share. The warrants expire seven years after the date of issuance.



The total outstanding balance of all stock warrants in the Company is 938,090 and 836,464 at March 31, 2022 and December 31 2021, respectively. There were101,626 detached free-standing stock warrants granted during the three-month period ended March 31, 2022, and 183,333 detached free-standing stock warrants granted during the three-month period ended March 31, 2021. The fair value of these non-employee stock warrants granted during the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 totaled \$700,000 and \$619,381, respectively, and were determined using the Black-Scholes option pricing model based on the following assumptions:

	Marc 202	,	N	larch 31, 2021
Exercise Price	\$	6.00	\$	9.00
Dividend Yield		0%	, D	0%
Volatility		110%	, D	158%
Risk-free Interest Rate		2.45%	, D	0.14%
Life of Warrants	7 Ye	ars		2 Years

The following table summarizes the changes in the Company's outstanding warrants during the three-month period ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, and as of March 31, 2022 and 2021:

	Warrants Outstanding Number of Shares	 Exercise Price Per Share	Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life	Ex	Weighted Average ercise Price Per Share	 Aggregate Intrinsic Value
Balance at December 31, 2020	194,772	\$ 1.50 - 6.00	3.80 Years	\$	2.82	\$ 1,173,737
Warrants Granted	183,333	\$ 6.00	1.96 Years	\$	9.00	\$ 66,000
Warrants Exercised	(58,979)	\$ 1.50	0.50 Years	\$	1.50	
Warrants Expired	-					
Balance at March 31, 2021	319,126	\$ 1.50 - 6.00	2.52 Years	\$	6.62	\$ 875,493

	Warrants Outstanding Number of Shares	 Exercise Price Per Share	Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life	Av Ex	ighted erage ercise Per Share	Aggregate rinsic Value_
Balance at December 31, 2021	836,464	\$ 1.50 - 9.00	3.04 Years	\$	6.78	\$ 1,784,838
Warrants Granted	101,626	\$ 6.00	7.00 Years	\$	6.00	\$ 152,439
Warrants Exercised	-	\$ -		\$	-	\$ -
Warrants Expired/Forfeited	-	\$ -		\$	-	\$ -
Balance at March 31, 2022	938,090	\$ 1.50 - 9.00	4.14 Years	\$	6.69	\$ 757,863

Share-Based Compensation

On October 24, 2019, the Company's 2019 Equity Incentive Plan (the "*Plan*") went effective authorizing 1,282,823 shares of Company common stock for issuance as stock options and restricted stock units ("*RSUs*") to employees, directors or consultants. The Plan was approved by the Company's Board of Directors and the holders of a majority of the Company's voting stock on September 9, 2019. In January 2022, the stockholders ratified a further authorization of shares of common stock for a total of 1,733,333 shares subject to the Plan.

The Company generally recognizes share-based compensation expense on the grant date and over the period of vesting or period that services will be provided.

Stock Options

As of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the Company has granted stock options to acquirel,106,587 and 1,036,588 shares of common stock under the plan, respectively. As of March 31, 2022, the plan has 679,204 vested shares and 427,383 non-vested shares. As of December 31, 2021, the plan had618,841 vested shares and 417,747 non-vested shares. The stock options are held by our officers, directors, employees, and certain key consultants.



In total for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company recorded in general and administrative expense \$92,441 and \$105,013, respectively, of share-based compensation expense related to stock options. The unrecognized compensation expense as of March 31, 2022, was approximately \$2,142,569 for non-vested share-based awards to be recognized over periods of approximately two months to three years.

In applying the Black-Scholes options pricing model, assumptions used to compute the fair value of the stock options granted during the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021 were as follows:

	March 31, 2022	March 31, 2021
Exercise Price	\$ 8.25 - 9.0750	-
Dividend Yield	0%	-
Volatility	191%-192%	-
Risk-free Interest Rate	0.78%-1.52%	-
Life of Warrants	2-3 Years	-

The following table summarizes the changes in the Company's outstanding stock options during the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021:

	Options Outstanding Number of Shares		Exercise Price Per Share	Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life	_	Weighted Average Exercise ice Per Share	In	Aggregate trinsic Value_
Balance at December 31, 2020	857,409	\$	0.7902 - 9.90	7.45 Years	\$	1.4997	\$	6,302,277
Options Granted	-							
Options Exercised	-							
Options Expired								
Balance at March 31, 2021	857,409	\$	0.7902 - 9.90	7.21 Years	\$	1.4497	\$	6,739,385
	Options Outstanding Number of Shares		Exercise Price Per Share	Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life	Pr	Weighted Average Exercise ice Per Share		Aggregate trinsic Value
Balance at December 31, 2021			0.7903 - 10.74	6.21 Years	\$	3.3900	\$	5,804,517
Options Granted	70,000	\$	8.25 - 9.0750	2.04 Years	\$	8.2893	\$	-
Options Exercised	-							
Options Expired/Forfeited								
Balance at March 31, 2022	1,123,356	\$	0.7903 - 10.7250	5.71 Years	\$	3.7042	\$	2,014,970
	Options Outstanding Number of Shares	F	Exercise Price Per Share	Weighted Average Remaining Contractual Life	E	Weighted Average xercise Price Per Share		Aggregate trinsic Value
Exercisable at December 31, 2021	635,609	\$	0.7903 - 10.74	6.7 Years	\$	1.5861	\$	4,655,089
Exercisable at March 31, 2022	695,973	\$ (0.7903 - 10.73	4.16 Years	\$	2.1692	\$	3,710,124



Restricted Stock Units

The Plan provides for the grant of RSUs. RSUs are settled in shares of the Company's common stock as the RSUs become vested. In January and February 2022, the Company granted 16,667 service based RSUs to an executive officer and 25,000 service based RSUs to a director, respectively. All RSUs granted in 2022 vest the earlier of the expiration of any lock-up period that includes the securities of the Company owned by the Plan participant after the up list of the Company to a national exchange or January 1, 2023. On January 12, 2022, 16,667 shares of the Company's common stock were issued for the RSUs vested during 2021.

The following table summarizes RSU activity under the Plan for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021:

		Wei	ghted	
		Ave	erage	Weighted
		Grant Date Fair Ave		Average
	RSUs	Value P	er Share	Vesting Period
Unvested at December 31, 2020	71,667	\$	8.75	1.70 Years
Granted	-			
Vested				
Unvested at March 31, 2021	71,667	\$	8.75	1.45 Years
		Wei	ghted	
		Ave	erage	Weighted
		Ave	0	Weighted Average
	RSUs	Ave Grant I	erage	0
Unvested at December 31, 2021	RSUs 133,585	Ave Grant I	erage Date Fair	Average
Unvested at December 31, 2021 Granted		Ave Grant I Value P	erage Date Fair Per Share	Average Vesting Period
	133,585	Ave Grant I Value P	erage Date Fair Per Share 8.56	Average Vesting Period 0.97 Years

In total for the three months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company recorded in general and administrative expense \$42,784 and \$60,531, respectively, of share-based compensation expense related to restricted stock units. As of March 31, 2022, total estimated compensation costs of RSUs granted and outstanding but not yet vested was \$774,765 which is expected to be recognized over the weighted average period of9 months.

Executive Officers Stock Options and RSUs

The Company has 311,436 and 823,482 outstanding executive officers stock options exercisable at \$0.7902 to \$10.14 and \$0.7902 to \$10.14 per shareas of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively. The Company has 175,252 and 61,919 unvested RSUs granted to executive officers as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, respectively.

NOTE 15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases

On February 26, 2021 the Company executed an office lease, effective for al2-month term beginning March 1, 2021. The lease requires monthly base rent payments of \$6,000 and the issuance of 5,333 shares of the Company's common stock. The value of the common stock of \$49,600 is amortized to rent expense on a monthly basis over the lease term. This lease was not renewed. The Company leases shared office space on two-to-three-month basis with monthly rents approximating \$4,500. The Company also leases an office space for approximately \$5,000 per month on a short-term (month to month) basis through a related party that terminates at any time. Rent expense under office leases, including CAM charges, was \$48,819 and \$23,629 for the three-month periods ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Legal Proceedings

On December 6, 2006, Orange County Valet and Security Patrol, Inc. filed a lawsuit against the Company in Orange County California State Superior Court for Breach of Contract in the amount of \$11,164. A default judgment was taken against the Company in this matter. In mid-2013 we learned the Plaintiff's perfected the judgment against the Company, but we have not heard from the Plaintiff's as of the date of this report. As of March 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, the Company has accrued 11,164 plus accrued interest of approximately 18,000. In the event we pay any money related to this lawsuit, IDTEC agreed to pay the amount for the Company in exchange for shares of our common stock.

NOTE 16. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through May 23, 2022, which is the date the condensed consolidated financial statements were available to be issued.

Our Common Stock has been approved for listing on the Nasdaq Capital Market ("Nasdaq") under the symbol "SOBR" and began trading the exchange on May 16, 2022.

In concert with our up listing to Nasdaq, on May 18, 2022, we received approximately \$,779,000 of net proceeds from the sale of an underwritten public offering of2,352,942 units (Units) at a public offering price of \$4.25 per Unit, with each Unit consisting of one share of our Common Stock, par value \$0.00001, and two warrants each to purchase one share of Common Stock. The Units have no stand-alone rights and will not be certified or issued as stand-alone securities. The Warrants included in the Units are exercisable immediately and have an exercise price of \$4.25 per share (100% of the price per Unit sold in the offering). The Warrants will not be listed for trading and will expire five years from the date of their issuance.

On May 19, 2022, the \$3,048,781 principal balance of the Armistice Capital Master Fund, Ltd 18% Original Issue Discount Convertible Debenture, which was in default at March 31, 2022, was paid in full satisfying all amounts due and accrued under the default including penalty, damages and interest provisions of the debt agreement.



ITEM 2 Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Disclaimer Regarding Forward Looking Statements

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includes a number of forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the "Exchange Act") that reflect management's current views with respect to future events and financial performance. These statements are based upon beliefs of, and information currently available to, the Company's management as well as estimates and assumptions made by the Company's management. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which are only predictions and speak only as of the date hereof. When used herein, the words "anticipate," "believe," "estimate," "expect," "forecast," "future," "intend," "plan," "predict," "project," "target," "potential," "wull," "would," "could," "could," could," could, "could," the Company's business, industry, and the Company with respect to future events and are subject to risks, uncertainties, assumptions, and other factors, including the risks relating to the Company's business, industry, and the Company's operations and results of operations. Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should the underlying assumptions prove incorrect, actual results may differ significantly from those anticipated, believed, estimated, expected, intended, or planned.

Although the Company believes that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, the Company cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements. Except as required by applicable law, including the securities laws of the United States, the Company does not intend to update any of the forward-looking statements to conform these statements to actual results.

Our financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States ("GAAP"). These accounting principles require us to make certain estimates, judgments and assumptions. We believe that the estimates, judgments and assumptions upon which we rely are reasonable based upon information available to us at the time that these estimates, judgments and assumptions are made. These estimates, judgments and assumptions can affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements as well as the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the periods presented. Our financial statements would be affected to the extent there are material differences between these estimates and actual results. The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our financial statements are made in this report. The forward-looking statements made in this report are based only on events or information as of the date on which the statements are made in this report. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update or revise publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise, after the date on which the statements are made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. You should read this report and have filed as exhibits to this report completely and with the understanding that our actual future results may be materially different from what we expect.

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, levels of activity, or performance. Readers are urged to carefully review and consider the various disclosures made by us in this report and in our other reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC"). We undertake no obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements to reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated events or changes in the future operating results over time except as required by law. We believe that our assumptions are based upon reasonable data derived from and known about our business and operations. No assurances are made that actual results of operations or the results of our future activities will not differ materially from our assumptions.

As used in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and unless otherwise indicated, the terms "Company," "we," "us," and "our" refer to SOBR Safe, Inc.

Reverse Stock Split

On November 4, 2021, our Board of Directors approved an amendment to our Articles of Incorporation to affect a reverse stock split of our outstanding common stock at a ratio between of 1-for-2 and 1-for-3 in connection with our planned listing on Nasdaq.

On January 7, 2022, our stockholders approved the same amendment to our Articles of Incorporation to affect a reverse stock split of our outstanding common stock at a ratio between of 1-for-2 and 1-for-3 in connection with our planned listing on Nasdaq, with the final ratio to be determined by our Board of Directors.

On March 4, 2022, our Board of Directors approved the reverse split ratio of 1-for-3.

On April 28, 2022, the 1-for-3 reverse stock split went effective with the State of Delaware, Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA") and OTC Markets. As a result of the 1-for-3 reverse stock split, every three shares of our outstanding common stock prior to the effect of that amendment were combined and reclassified into one share of our common stock, and the number of outstanding shares of our common stock at the time was reduced from 23,409,415 (pre-split) to approximately 7,803,139 (post-split). No fractional shares were issued in connection with the reverse stock split, and any of our stockholders that would have been entitled to receive a fractional share as a result of the reverse stock split instead received one additional share of our common stock in lieu of the fractional share. The reverse stock split did not in itself affect any stockholder's ownership percentage of our common stock, except to the extent that any fractional share was rounded up to the nearest whole share.

Corporate Overview

We were incorporated under the name Imagine Media, Ltd. in August 2007 to publish and distribute Image Magazine, a monthly guide and entertainment source for the Denver, Colorado area. We generated only limited revenue and essentially abandoned the business plan in January 2009.

On September 19, 2011, we, Imagine Media, Ltd., a Delaware corporation, acquired approximately 52% of the outstanding shares of TransBiotec, Inc. ("TBT"), a California corporation, from TBT's directors in exchange for 124,439 shares of our common stock. In January 2012, our Board of Directors amended our Certificate of Incorporation changing our name from Imagine Media, Ltd. to TransBiotec, Inc., and we acquired approximately 45% of the remaining outstanding shares of TBT in exchange for 109,979 shares of our common stock. With the acquisitions in September 2011 and January 2012 of TBT common stock, we own approximately 99% of the outstanding shares of TBT. As a result of the acquisitions, TBT's business is our business, and, unless otherwise indicated, any references to "we" or "us" include the business and operations of TBT.

On March 9, 2020, in connection with our transaction with IDTEC, LLC our Board of Directors approved the amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation on March 9, 2020 and stockholders holding 52.24% of our then outstanding voting stock approved an amendment to our Articles of Incorporation. The Certificate of Amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation was for the purpose of, among other things, (i) changing our name from "TransBiotec, Inc." to "SOBR Safe, Inc.", (ii) effecting a 1-for-33.26 reverse stock split of our common stock, and (iii) decreasing our authorized common stock from 800,000,000 shares to 100,000,000 shares. The Certificate of Amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation became effective with the State of Delaware on April 24, 2020.

As a result of the reverse stock split effected by our Certificate of Amendment to our Certificate of Incorporation, every 33.26 shares of our outstanding common stock prior to the effect of that amendment were combined and reclassified into one share of our common stock. No fractional shares were issued in connection with the reverse stock split, and any of our stockholders that would have been entitled to receive a fractional share as a result of the reverse stock split received one additional share of our common stock in lieu of the fractional share. The reverse stock split did not in itself affect any stockholder's ownership percentage of our common stock, except to the extent that any fractional share was rounded up to the nearest whole share.

At the open of market on April 28, 2022, our 1-for-3 reverse split of our common stock went effective with FINRA and OTC Markets. As a result, all common stock share amounts, as well as share amounts and exercise and conversion prices in derivative security instruments have been adjusted to reflect the reverse stock split.

Pursuant to approval of an application with Nasdaq to uplist our common stock to their exchange under the ticker symbol "SOBR," our common stock began trading and quoted on Nasdaq Capital Market on May 16, 2022. Prior to this uplist to Nasdaq Capital Market, our common stock was quoted on the "OTCQB" tier of the OTC Markets under the ticker symbol "SOBR."

Our corporate offices are located at 6400 South Fiddlers Green Circle, Suite 525, Greenwood Village, Colorado 80111, telephone number (844) 762-7723.

The following discussion:

- o summarizes our plan of operation; and
- o analyzes our financial condition and the results of our operations for the three-months ended March 31, 2022.

This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our financial statements included as part of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, as well as our financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021.

Business Operations and Outlook

We develop and provide companies with non-invasive technology to quickly and safely identify potential alcohol issues with their employees or contractors, that if left undetected could cause injury or death. These technologies are integrated within our robust and scalable data platform, producing statistical and measurable user and business data. Our mission is to save lives, increase productivity, create significant economic benefit for our customers and positively impact behavior. To that end, we developed the scalable, patent-pending SOBRSafeTM hardware/software platform for non-invasive alcohol detection and identity verification, a solution that has anticipated applications in commercial vehicle fleets, manufacturing and warehousing, construction, DUI probation, third-party alcohol testing, outpatient alcohol rehabilitation and youth drivers. We believe that uniform daily use of our device could result in insurance savings across workers' compensation, general liability, umbrella and fleet policies.

We have successfully completed several pilot testing programs involving our SOBRcheckTM device, which is our first device that has our scalable, patent-pending SOBRSafeTM software platform for non-invasive alcohol detection and identity verification. These pilot programs have provided validation of both our SOBRSafeTM software platform and our SOBRcheckTM device. In addition, during the pilot testing of our SOBRcheckTM device we discovered that alcohol-based hand sanitizer caused false readings by the device. In response to this discovery, we have made adjustments to the analytics in our SOBRSafeTM technology and added a required protocol of not utilizing alcohol-based sanitizers to our protocols for using the SOBRcheckTM device.

As a result, we have now progressed to commercial production, launch and sale of our first SOBRcheckTM devices and software solution to initial customers with an initial focus on last mile delivery fleets. At the end of 2021, we had several customers in the sales cycle, but our SOBRcheckTM devices were not delivered to them until January 2022. Since, we have executed customer agreements, invoiced these customers and are in revenue as of first quarter 2022.

Our second device, a wearable wristband (SOBRsureTM), utilizes the same SOBRSafeTM sensor technology and software platform, which was validated during the SOBRcheckTM pilot tests. The primary intended application for this band is for young individual drivers and commercial fleet management, with an additional potential application in managed care/alcohol rehabilitation. We plan for the wearable band to be commercially available in August 2022.

Design, manufacturing and assembly of our SOBRcheckTM and SOBRsureTM devices will take place in the United States. We currently utilize two companies for manufacturing of the SOBRcheckTM device. We do not have agreements in place with these companies and we operate with them on a purchase order/payment basis. We supply a purchase order, which they fulfill, and then they send us an invoice.



Our SOBRsafeTM technology can also be deployed across numerous additional devices for various uses; among those we are currently exploring include possible integrations with existing telematics systems, and it could be licensed by non-competitive third parties.

On January 15, 2021, we initiated a Private Offering (the "Offering") of up to 40 Units (\$2,000,000) with each Unit consisting of one \$50,000 principal amount secured convertible debenture, convertible at \$9 per share, and a Warrant to purchase 8,333 shares of the Company's common stock at \$9 per share. The Secured Debentures carry interest at 12% and mature 24 months after issuance. The Warrants are exercisable six months after issuance and expire 24 months after issuance. The Offering closed on May 31, 2021 and raised \$2,005,000.

On September 28, 2021, we completed a financing transaction of a convertible debenture and issued warrants (the "Debenture") that raised \$2,225,000 of net proceeds after debt issuance costs. The Debenture is for a face amount \$3,048,781 with an Original Issue Discount of 18% and was due March 27, 2022, if not converted. The Debenture matured on March 27, 2022 and we did not make the required principal payment putting the Company in default under the terms of the Debenture. On March 30, 2022, we entered into a Waiver Agreement with the purchaser, under which the Purchaser granted the Company a waiver of the default penalties under the Debenture such that any default penalties will not be charged and/or due until April 17, 2022 (the "Waiver"). In exchange for the Waiver of the default penalties the Company agreed to: (i) amend the original Common Stock Warrant (the "Original Warrant") issued by the Company to the purchaser dated September 27, 2021 to extend the Termination Date (as defined in the Original Warrant) from September 28, 2026 to September 28, 2028; and (ii) issue the Purchaser a second Common Stock Purchase Warrant (the "New Warrant") entitling the Purchaser to subscribe for and purchase up to an additional 101,626 shares of our common stock, expiring March 29, 2029, with all other terms of the warrant the same as the Original Warrant. The extended terms of the Original Warrants and the issuance of the New Warrant secult in additional fair value of \$164,000 and \$700,000, respectively during the three-month period ended March 31, 2022. As a result of the change in the Original Warrant extended termination date and the New Warrant issued in exchange for the Waiver, the Company evaluated the reacquisition price of the Debenture under ASC 470-50-40-2 to be \$3,912,781. As the net carrying amount of the Debenture is \$3,048,781, a loss on eating with the reacquisition price of the Debenture under ASC 470-50-40-2 to be \$3,912,781. As the net carrying amount of the Waiver date resulting in mandatory penalties

We deployed the net funding we received from the 2021 financing (\$4.2M) to bolster and expedite product development (SOBRcheckTM and SOBRsureTM), deploy sales and marketing initiatives to develop the SOBR brand and grow the business and expand the employee base in correlation with customer and technology development.

On May 18, 2022, we received approximately \$8,799,000 of net proceeds from the sale of an underwritten public offering of 2,352,942 units (Units) at a public offering price of \$4.25 per Unit, with each Unit consisting of one share of our Common Stock, par value \$0.00001, and two warrants each to purchase one share of Common Stock. The Warrants included in the Units are exercisable immediately and have an exercise price of \$4.25 per share (100% of the price per Unit sold in the offering). The Warrants will not be listed for trading and will expire five years from the date of their issuance. On May 19, 2022, the \$3,048,781 principal balance of the Armistice Capital Master Fund, Ltd 18% Original Issue Discount Convertible Debenture in default at March 31, 2022, was paid in full satisfying all amounts due and accrued under the default, including penalty, damages and interest provisions of the loan agreement.

Management believes that the net offering proceeds of approximately \$5,729,000, after the payment of the defaulted loan balance of \$3,048,781, provides adequate working capital for operating activities for the next twelve months after the date the financial statements are issued. However, convertible notes payable plus interest at 12% per annum are due 24 months from issuance. Total principal balances of the convertible notes at March 31, 2022 are \$2,005,000 and are due \$1,100,000, \$155,000 and \$750,000 in March 2023, April 2023 and May 2023, respectively. The notes are convertible at \$9 per share of the Company's common stock. The notes contain both voluntary and automatic conversion features. The notes may be convertible at any time, by the holders, beginning on the date of issuance. The notes automatically convert into shares of the Company's common stock if the Company's common stock closes at or above \$6 per share for five (5) consecutive trading days while listed on Nasdaq. Should the notes not automatically underwritten public offering.

In addition capital may be required under the following circumstances, 1) accelerated customer acquisition increasing capital outlay, 2) advanced purchasing of materials due to COVID backlog, 3) acquisition of new technology, 4) potential acquisition of a key asset, and 5) global expansion.

Results of Operations for Three Months Ended March 31, 2022 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2021

Summary of Results of Operations

	Three Months Ended <u>March 31,</u> 2022	2021
Revenue	\$ 1,500	\$-
Cost of goods sold	1,100	-
Gross Profit	400	-
Operating expenses:		
General and administrative	2,269,175	776,861
Stock-based compensation expense	442,784	18,690
Research and development	47,459	171,463
Total operating expenses	2,759,418	967,014
Operating loss	(2,759,018)	(916,014)
Other income (expense):		
Other income (expense), net	27	-
Loss on extinguishment of debt	(864,000)	-
Loss on fair value adjustment – derivatives	(340,000)	-
Interest expense	(1,026,471)	(25,878)
Amortization of interest – conversion features	(580,221)	(9,542)
Total other expense, net	(2,810,665)	(35,420)
Net loss	\$ (5,569,683)	\$ (1,002,434)

Operating Loss; Net Loss

Our net loss increased by \$4,567,249 from \$1,002,434 to \$5,569,683, from the three-month period ended March 31, 2021 compared to the three-month period ended March 31, 2022. The change in our net loss and operating loss for the three months ended March 31, 2022, compared to the same prior year period, is primarily a result of acceleration of our planned strategic operational and financing activities resulting in increases in interest and other financing related costs, general and administrative expenses, and stock-based compensation expense, offset by a reduction in research and development expense. The changes are detailed below.

Revenue

Prior to the three-month period ended March 31, 2022, we progressed to commercial production, launch and sale of our first SOBRcheck[™] devices and software solution to initial customers with our devices being delivered for use in January 2022. We executed customer agreements, invoiced these customers and recognized revenue of \$1,500 during the first quarter 2022.

Gross Profit

The cost of goods sold for the three-months ended March 31, 2022 was \$1,100 resulting in a gross profit of \$400 and a gross margin of 27%. Due to the limited history of generating revenue, the gross profit and gross margin at March 31, 2022 is not indicative of our future planned performance, our product lines or services.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by \$1,492,314, from \$776,861 for the three-month period ended March 31, 2021 to \$2,269,175 for the three-month period ended March 31, 2022. The increase from the same prior year period is primarily due to increases in our employee compensation and benefits of \$128,552, a one-time debt default penalty of \$914,634 related to the Armistice Convertible Debt, stock-option expense of \$386,057, professional, legal and consulting services of \$62,767, and facility rents of \$12,856, offset by a reduction in other general & administrative expenses in aggregate of \$12,552.



Stock-Based Compensation Expense

We had stock-based compensation expense of \$442,784 for the three-months ended March 31, 2022, compared to \$18,690 for the three-months ended March 31, 2021. The stock-based compensation expense was related to the issuance of our common stock or restricted stock units as compensation to certain consultants and employees.

Research and Development

Research and development decreased by \$124,004, to \$47,459 for the three-months ended March 31, 2022, compared to \$171,463 for the three-months ended March 31, 2021. The decrease in research and development was due to the finalization of our initial development of our SOBR® SafeTM software platform and the development and test of our SOBRcheckTM devices, as we prepared to commercialize the device in January 2022.

Fair Value Adjustment - Derivatives

Fair value adjustment – derivatives was a loss of \$340,000 for the three-month period ended March 31, 2022, which is related to outstanding financial instruments issued in September 2021 that contain an embedded derivative liability component. We did not have any outstanding financial instruments that contain derivative liability components during the three-month period ended, March 31, 2021. The gain or loss related to the instruments are affected by the price of our common stock.

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased by \$1,026,471, from \$25,878 for the three-month period ended March 31, 2021 to \$1,000,593 for the three-month period ended March 31, 2022. This increase is primarily attributable to us having significantly more outstanding convertible debt during the three months ended March 31, 2022 compared to the same period in 2021.

The increase of \$1,000,593 in interest expense is attributed to the increase in outstanding debt related to interest amortization from original issued debt and convertible warrants in September 2021 of \$828,743 and increase in interest amortization of \$171,850 from private placement offering in January 2021 of \$197,414 for the three-month period ended March 31, 2022, as compared to \$25,878 of interest expense for the three-month period ended March 31, 2021.

Amortization of Interest - Conversion Features

During the three-months ended March 31, 2022, we had amortization of interest – beneficial conversion feature expense of \$580,221 compared to \$9,542 during the threemonths ended March 31, 2021, resulting in an increase of \$570,679. The expenses for the periods were related to the amortized discount on convertible notes payable of which we had substantially more outstanding convertible debt during the three months ended March 31, 2022 compared to the same period in 2021.



Liquidity and Capital Resources for Three Months Ended March 31, 2022 Compared to December 31, 2021

Introduction

During the three-months ended March 31, 2022 and 2021, because of our operating losses, we did not generate positive operating cash flows. Our cash on hand as of March 31, 2022 is \$107,448 and our current normalized monthly operating cash flow burn rate is approximately \$200,000. As a result, we need to raise additional funds to finance our current and long-term business plans. We currently do not believe we will be able to satisfy our cash needs from our revenues for some time, and there is no guarantee we will be successful in the future to adequately satisfy these needs through the proceeds generated from the sales of our securities or additional financing

Our cash, current assets, total assets, current liabilities, and total liabilities as of March 31, 2022 and as of December 31, 2021, respectively, are as follows:

	N	Aarch 31, 2022	De	cember 31, 2021	 Change
Cash	\$	107,448	\$	882,268	\$ (774,820)
Total Current Assets		242,184		934,282	(692,098)
Total Assets		3,420,751		4,209,215	(788, 464)
Total Current Liabilities		7,247,302		3,981,935	3,265,367
Total Liabilities		7,628,302		4,652,808	2,975,494

Our current assets and total assets decreased as of March 31, 2022, as compared to December 31, 2021, primarily due to the use cash to support our negative cash flow from operations.

Our current liabilities increased as of March 31, 2022, as compared to December 31, 2021. This increase was primarily due to increases in accounts payable, accrued interest payable, accrued expenses payable, derivative liability, convertible debenture payable and current maturities of long-term debt.

In order to repay our obligations in full or in part when due, we will be required to raise significant capital from other sources. There is no assurance, however, that we will be successful in these efforts.

Sources and Uses of Cash

Operations

We had net cash used in operating activities of \$774,820 for the three-month period ended March 31, 2022, as compared to net cash used for operating activities of \$668,781 for the three-month period ended March 31, 2021. For the period in 2022, the net cash used in operating activities consisted primarily of our net loss of \$5,569,683, offset by non-cash expense items including depreciation and amortization of \$96,366, loss on extinguishment of debt of \$864,000, change in fair value of a derivative liability by \$340,000, amortization of interest – conversion features of \$580,221, amortization of interest of \$423,782, stock options expense of \$491,441, and stock-based compensation expense of \$442,784, and changes in our assets and liabilities for accounts receivable of (\$500), inventory of (\$65,489), prepaid expenses of (\$16,733), accounts payable of \$96,886, accrued expenses of \$931,796, and accrued interest payable of \$57,696, and related party payables of \$12,437.

For the period in 2021, the net cash used in operating activities consisted primarily of our net loss of \$1,002,434, offset by depreciation and amortization of \$96,366, amortization of interest – beneficial conversion feature of \$9,562, stock warrants expense of \$13,472, stock options expense of \$105,013, stock-based compensation expense of \$18,690, and changes in our assets and liabilities of amounts due from related parties of (\$2,792), prepaid expenses of \$5,559, accounts payable of \$65,317, accrued expenses of (\$30,566), accrued interest payable of (\$42,950), related party payables of \$7,533, and common stock subscriptions payable of \$88,469.

Investments

We had no cash provided by or used for investing activities during the three-month period ended March 31, 2022 or March 31, 2021.

Financing

We had no cash provide by or used in financing activities during the three-month period ended March 31, 2022. For the three-month period ended March 31, 2021, our net cash from financing activities consisted of proceeds from notes payable – non-related parties of \$600,000 and proceeds from notes payable – related parties of \$530,000.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

At March 31, 2022, the Company had no debt obligations and short term leases and was not committed to material contractual obligations for the design, production, delivery or assemble of its software platform or associated devices.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements as of March 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021.

Effects of COVID 19

On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization ("WHO") announced a global health emergency because of a new strain of coronavirus originating in Wuhan, China (the "COVID-19 outbreak") and the risks to the international community as the virus spreads globally beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19 outbreak as a pandemic, based on the rapid increase in exposure globally. The full impact of the COVID-19 outbreak and its variants continues to evolve as of the date of this filing. Management is actively monitoring the global situation on our financial condition, liquidity, operations, suppliers, industry, and workforce. Given the daily evolution of the COVID-19 outbreak, its variants, and the global responses to curb its spread, we are not able to estimate the effects of the COVID-19 outbreak on our results of operations, financial condition, or liquidity for fiscal year 2022. However, if the pandemic continues, it could have an adverse effect on our results of future operations, financial position, and liquidity in 2022.

Effects of Inflation

We do not believe that inflation has had a material impact on our business, revenue or operating results during the periods presented. However, continued increases in inflation could have an adverse effect on our results of future operations, financial position, and liquidity in 2022

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

There have been no recent accounting pronouncements or changes in accounting pronouncements during the period ended March 31, 2022, or subsequently thereto, that we believe are of potential significance to our financial statements.



ITEM 3 Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

As a smaller reporting company, we are not required to provide the information required by this Item.

ITEM 4 Controls and Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure and Controls Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms. Disclosure and control procedures are also designed to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the chief executive officer and chief financial officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

As of March 31, 2022, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of management, including our Chief Executive Officer (our Principal Executive Officer) and Chief Financial Officer (our Principal Financial Officer), of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures. In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognizes that there are inherent limitations to the effectiveness of any system of disclosure controls and procedures, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of the controls and procedures. Accordingly, even effective disclosure controls and procedures can only provide reasonable assurance of achieving their desired control objectives. Additionally, in evaluating and implementing possible controls and procedures, management is required to apply its reasonable judgment. During the three-month period ended March 31, 2022, we hired a Chief Financial Officer, whereas previously our Chief Executive Officer also served as our Principal Financial Officer, and hired a Vice President of Finance and Accounting to improve disclosure controls and procedures. Although we began mitigating certain limitations in the effectiveness of its system of controls and procedures during the three month period ended March 31, 2022, based on the evaluation described above, and as a result, in part, of the timing of beginning to implement the mitigating improvements, management has concluded that, as of the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective and have not significantly improved as reported in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2021.

As funds become available to us, we expect to implement additional measures to improve disclosure controls and procedures.

(b) Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

As noted above, during the three-month period ended March 31, 2022, we hired a Chief Financial Officer, whereas previously our Chief Executive Officer also served as our Principal Financial Officer, and hired a Vice President of Finance and Accounting to improve disclosure controls and procedures, and support additional segregation of financial and internal controls. Also, our Board approved our Audit Committee Charter in compliance with Nasdaq requirements. As a result, we began mitigating certain limitations in the effectiveness of its system of controls and procedures during the three month period ended March 31, 2022, however, due to the timing of beginning to implement these improvements, we do not believe they materially impacted our internal controls over financial reporting or our internal controls over financial reporting during the period covered by this report.

(c) Officer's Certifications

Appearing as an exhibit to this quarterly report on Form 10-Q are "Certifications" of our Chief Executive and Financial Officer. The Certifications are required pursuant to Sections 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the "Section 302 Certifications"). This section of the quarterly report on Form 10-Q contains information concerning the Controls Evaluation referred to in the Section 302 Certifications. This information should be read in conjunction with the Section 302 Certifications for a more complete understanding of the topics presented.



PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1 Legal Proceedings

On December 6, 2006, Orange County Valet and Security Patrol, Inc. filed a lawsuit against us in Orange County California State Superior Court for Breach of Contract in the amount of \$11,164. A default judgment was taken against us in this matter. In mid-2013 we learned the Plaintiff's perfected the judgment against us, but we have not heard from the Plaintiffs as of May 2022. In the event we pay any money related to this lawsuit, IDTEC, LLC agreed, in connection with us closing the asset purchase transaction with IDTEC, to pay the amount for us in exchange for shares of our common stock.

In the ordinary course of business, we are from time to time involved in various pending or threatened legal actions. The litigation process is inherently uncertain and it is possible that the resolution of such matters might have a material adverse effect upon our financial condition and/or results of operations. However, in the opinion of our management, other than as set forth herein, matters currently pending or threatened against us are not expected to have a material adverse effect on our financial position or results of operations.

ITEM 1A Risk Factors

As a smaller reporting company, we are not required to provide the information required by this Item.

ITEM 2 Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

During the three months ended March 31, 2022 we issued the following unregistered securities:

On January 12, 2022, we issued 16,667 shares of our common stock for restricted stock units that vested during 2021. This issuance was made in reliance on Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. To make this determination we relied on our knowledge of the purchaser and the representations of the purchaser contained in certain agreements, which indicated the purchaser was knowledgeable about our management and our operations, was a sophisticated investor, and understood the purchase was part of a private placement.

On March 1, 2022, we entered in to Share Exchange Agreements with David Gandini, one of our officers and directors, and Gary Graham, our largest shareholder, to exchange 333,334 and 666,667 shares of our common stock into 1,000,000 shares and 2,000,000 shares of our Series B Preferred Stock, respectively. These stock exchanges of common stock for preferred stock were done as conditions of our planned underwritten offering and planned listing on Nasdaq. The shares of our Series B Convertible Preferred Stock have liquidation preference over our common stock, receive dividends in pari passu with our common stockholders, are convertible into shares of our common stock on a 1-for-1 basis, and vote on an "as converted" basis. The issuance of these securities was exempt from registration pursuant to Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933. The investors are sophisticated, familiar with our operations, and there was no general solicitation or advertising.

On March 3, 2022, we issued 7,917 shares of common stock under the terms of a 47,500 convertible note payable issued March 6, 2020 with interest at 5%, due March 6, 2022 and convertible at 6 per share. This issuance was made in reliance on Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. To make this determination we relied on our knowledge of the purchaser and the representations of the purchaser contained in certain agreements, which indicated the purchaser was knowledgeable about our management and our operations, was a sophisticated investor, and understood the purchase was part of a private placement.

ITEM 3 Defaults Upon Senior Securities

On December 28, 2010, we borrowed \$11,810 from a related party. The note payable carries an interest rate of 0% and matured on December 31, 2012. As of March 31, 2022 this note was in default.

On February 20, 2012, we borrowed \$3,750 from a non-related party. The note payable carries an interest rate of 12% and matured on February 19, 2013. As of March 31, 2022 this note was in default.

On March 20, 2012, we borrowed \$5,433 from a non-related party. The note payable carries an interest rate of 12% and matured on March 19, 2013. As of March 31, 2022 this note was in default.

On September 27, 2013, we borrowed \$15,000 from a non-related party. The note payable carries an interest rate of 9% and matured on December 25, 2013. As of March 31, 2022 this note was in default.

On March 14, 2014, we borrowed \$5,000 from a non-related party. The note payable carries an interest rate of 10% and matured on September 14, 2014. As of March 31, 2022 this note was in default.



On July 31, 2015, we borrowed \$2,500 from a non-related party. The note payable carries an interest rate of 10% and matured on November 28, 2015. As of March 31, 2022 this note was in default.

On September 28, 2021, we received from a non-related party \$2,500,000 for an 18% Original Issue Discount Convertible Debenture in the principal amount of \$3,048,781. As of March 31, 2022 this note was in default. On May 19, 2022 the principal balance was paid in full satisfying all amounts due and accrued under the default and damages provisions of the loan agreement.

ITEM 4 Mine Safety Disclosures

There have been no events which are required to be reported under this Item.

ITEM 5 Other Information

On May 13, 2022, we entered into an underwriting agreement (the "Underwriting Agreement"), with Aegis Capital Corp., who acted as the lead book running manager (the "Underwriter"), pursuant to which we agreed to sell to the Underwriter in a firm commitment underwritten public offering (the "Offering") an aggregate of 2,352,942 units. Each unit consisted of one share of our common stock, par value \$0.00001 per share (the "Common Stock"), and two warrants ("Warrants", and together with the Common Stock the "Units"), at a public offering price of \$4.25 per Unit. Each Warrant included in the Units is exercisable for one share of Common Stock, is exercisable immediately, has an exercise price of \$4.25 per share, which represents 100% of the price per unit sold in the Offering, and expires five years from the date of issuance. The exercise price of the Warrant may adjust downward based on certain events. The Common Stock began trading on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol SOBR on May 16, 2022. The Warrants are non-tradeable.

The Units were offered and sold to the public pursuant to the Company's registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-262665), initially filed by us with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act") on February 11, 2022, and declared effective on May 13, 2022.

In addition, the Underwriter was granted a 45-day option, exercisable in one or more times in whole or in part, to purchase up to an additional 352,941 shares of Common Stock and/or up to an additional 705,882 Warrants solely to cover over-allotments. The over-allotment shares of Common Stock can be purchased at the public offering price of the Units (\$4.25), less the underwriting discounts payable by us, and the Warrants can be purchased for \$0.01 per Warrant.

The Underwriting Agreement contains customary representations, warranties and agreements by us, customary conditions to closing, indemnification obligations of us and the Underwriter, including for liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, other obligations of the parties and termination provisions. Further, pursuant to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement and related "lock-up" agreements, we, each director and executive officer of our, and certain stockholders have agreed with the Underwriter not to offer for sale, issue, sell, contract to sell, pledge or otherwise dispose of any of Common Stock or securities convertible into Common Stock for a period of 180 days (24 months for the Company) commencing on the May 13, 2022, the date of the final prospectus.

On May 17, 2022, we entered into a warrant agent agreement (the "Warrant Agent Agreement") with Equiniti Trust Company ("Warrant Agent"), to serve as our warrant agent for the Warrants. Upon the closing of the Offering, the Warrant Agent issued the Warrants.

On May 18, 2022, pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, we issued Representative's Warrants to purchase up to an aggregate of 141,177 shares of Common Stock (the "Representative's Warrants"). The Representative's Warrants are exercisable beginning on November 17, 2022, until May 17, 2027. The initial exercise price of Representative's Warrants is \$5.3125 per share, which equals 125% of the public offering price per Unit in the Offering.

The Offering closed on May 18, 2022.

The foregoing description of the Underwriting Agreement, Representative's Warrants and Warrant Agent Agreement are not complete and are qualified in their entirety by references to the full text of the Underwriting Agreement, the form of Representative's Warrants, the Warrant Agent Agreement and the Form of Unit Warrant, which are filed as exhibits 1.1, 4.1, 4.2 and 4.3, respectively, to this report and are incorporated by reference herein.

ITEM 6 Exhibits

Item No.	Description
<u>1.1 (19)</u>	Underwriting Agreement by and between SOBR Safe, Inc. and Aegis Capital Corp. dated May, 2022
<u>3.1 (1)</u>	Articles of Incorporation of Imagine Media, Ltd.
<u>3.2 (2)</u>	Articles of Amendment to Articles of Incorporation to TransBiotec, Inc.
<u>3.3 (3)</u>	Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation filed with the State of Delaware on May 25, 2017
<u>3.4 (6)</u>	Amended and Restated Bylaws of SOBR Safe, Inc.
<u>3.5 (10)</u>	Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation of TransBiotec, Inc. changing name to SOBR Safe, Inc., effecting 1-for-33.26 reverse stock split and decreasing authorized common stock to 100M shares
<u>4.1 (19)</u>	Form of Representative's Warrant
<u>4.2 (19)</u>	Warrant Agency Agreement
<u>4.3 (19)</u>	Form of Unit Warrant
<u>10.1 (4)</u>	Asset Purchase Agreement dated May 6, 2019 between IDTEC, LLC and TransBiotec, Inc.
<u>10.2 (5)</u>	Common Stock Purchase Agreement with Charles Bennington dated August 23, 2019
<u>10.3 (5)</u>	Share Exchange Agreement with Michael Lanphere dated August 23, 2019
<u>10.4 (5)</u>	Share Exchange Agreement with Vernon Justus dated August 23, 2019
<u>10.5 (5)</u>	Debt Conversion and Common Stock Purchase Agreement with Michael Lanphere dated August 23, 2019
<u>10.6 (5)</u>	Debt Conversion and Common Stock Purchase Agreement with Devadatt Mishal dated August 23, 2019
<u>10.7 (6)</u>	TransBiotec, Inc. 2019 Equity Incentive Plan
<u>10.8 (6)</u>	Employment Agreement with Kevin Moore dated October 25, 2019
<u>10.9 (8)</u>	Amended Employment Agreement with Kevin Moore dated November 26, 2019
<u>10.10 (6)</u>	Employment Agreement with David Gandini dated October 25, 2019
<u>10.11 (7)</u>	Series A-1 Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement by and between TransBiotec, Inc. and SOBR SAFE, LLC dated December 12, 2019 (with Series A-1 Preferred Stock Certificate of Designation attached)



<u>10.12 (9)</u>	Amendment No. 1 to Asset Purchase Agreement dated March 23, 2020 by and between IDTEC, LLC and TransBiotec, Inc.
<u>10.13 (10)</u>	Form of Convertible Promissory Note Issued to IDTEC, LLC at Close of Asset Purchase Transaction
<u>10.14 (10)</u>	Waiver Under Asset Purchase Agreement and Post-Closing Covenant Agreement dated June 5, 2020 by and between IDTEC, LLC and TransBiotec, Inc.
<u>10.15 (10)</u>	Warrant to Purchase Common Stock dated June 5, 2020 issued to IDTEC, LLC
<u>10.16 (11)</u>	Advisory Agreement with Steven Beabout dated October 9, 2020
<u>10.17 (12)</u>	18% Original Issue Discount Convertible Debenture issued by SOBR Safe, Inc. to Armistice Capital Master Fund Ltd. dated September 27, 2021
<u>10.18 (12)</u>	Warrant to Purchase Common Stock issued by SOBR Safe, Inc. to Armistice Capital Master Fund Ltd. dated September 27, 2021
<u>10.19 (12)</u>	Securities Purchase Agreement by and between SOBR Safe, Inc. and Armistice Capital Master Fund Ltd. dated September 27, 2021
<u>10.20 (12)</u>	Registration Rights Agreement by and between SOBR Safe, Inc. and Armistice Capital Master Fund Ltd. dated September 27, 2021
<u>10.21 (13)</u>	"Form of" Secured Convertible Debenture issued by SOBR Safe, Inc. in \$2M Regulation D Offering
10.22 (13)	"Form of" Warrant issued by SOBR Safe, Inc. in Regulation D Offering
10.23 (14)	Transition Agreement by and between SOBR Safe, Inc. and Kevin Moore dated October 30, 2021
10.24(15)	Executive Employment Agreement with Scott Bennett dated August 17, 2021
10.25(15)	Executive Employment Agreement with Michael Watson dated October 11, 2021
<u>10.27 (16)</u>	Executive Employment Agreement with Gerard Wenzel dated January 1, 2022
<u>10.28 (17)</u>	Form of Share Exchange Agreement with David Gandini and Gary Graham for Series B Preferred Stock
<u>10.29 (18)</u>	Waiver by and between SOBR Safe, Inc. and Armistice Capital Master Fund Ltd. dated March 30, 2022
<u>31.1*</u>	Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer (filed herewith)
<u>31.2*</u>	Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Accounting Officer (filed herewith)
32.1*	Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive Officer (filed herewith).

32.2*	Section 1350 Certification of Chief Accounting Officer (filed herewith).
101.INS **	Inline XBRL Instance Document (the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline
	XBRL document)
101.SCH **	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL **	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF **	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB **	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE **	Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
104	Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)

*Filed herewith.

**XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language) information is furnished and not filed or a part of a registration statement or prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections.

- (1) Incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form SB-2, filed with the Commission on January 31, 2008
- (2) Incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form S-1, filed with the Commission on November 6, 2012
- (3) Incorporated by reference from our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017, filed with the Commission on February 6, 2019
- (4) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on May 14, 2019.
- (5) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on September 10, 2019.
- (6) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on November 19, 2019
- (7) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on December 23, 2019
- (8) Incorporated by reference from our Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Commission on April 17, 2020
- (9) Incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2020, filed with the Commission on May 26, 2020
- (10) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on June 11, 2020
- (11) Incorporated by reference from our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2020, filed with the Commission on June 30, 2021
- (12) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on October 1, 2021
- (13) Incorporated by reference from Amendment No. 1 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Commission on December 1, 2021
- (14) Incorporated by reference from Amendment No. 3 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Commission on December 20, 2021.
- (15) Incorporated by reference from Amendment No. 4 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Commission on January 19, 2022.
- (16) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on January 19, 2022.
- (17) Incorporated by reference from our Amendment No. 1 to our Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the Commission on March 17, 2022
- (18) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on April 1, 2022
- (19) Incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on May 19, 2022

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: May 23, 2022 /s/ David Gandini By: David Gandini Its: Chief Executive Officer and Principal Executive Officer

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer

I, David Gandini, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of SOBR Safe, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exhibit Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial information; and
 - (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: May 23, 2022

/s/ David Gandini

By: David Gandini Chief Executive Officer and Principal Executive Officer

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer

I, Jerry Wenzel, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of SOBR Safe, Inc.;
- Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exhibit Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
 - (a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - (b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
 - (c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
 - (d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

By:

- (a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
- (b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: May 23, 2022

/s/ Jerry Wenzel Jerry Wenzel

Chief Financial Officer

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 USC, SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of SOBR Safe, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about the date hereof (the "Report"), I, David Gandini, Chief Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sec. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

- (1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
- (2) Information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: May 23, 2022

/s/ David Gandini

By: David Gandini Chief Executive Officer and Principal Executive Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to SOBR Safe, Inc. and will be retained by SOBR Safe, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 USC, SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of SOBR Safe, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2022, as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or about the date hereof (the "Report"), I, Jerry Wenzel, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sec. 1350, as adopted pursuant to Sec. 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

By:

(2) Information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: May 23, 2022

<u>/s/ Jerry Wenzel</u> Jerry Wenzel Chief Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to SOBR Safe, Inc. and will be retained by SOBR Safe, Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.